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Higher Education in South Africa is going through seismic changes in its history. Steering a higher
education institution in the next decade will not be easy, but it will be a very important task in the
interest of knowledge production, the knowledge economy and skills development. This became
obvious at the national Jobs Summit where specific reference was made to the important role of
TVET Colleges. Emphasis was placed on the need for TVET Colleges to deliver 21st century artisans
for the fourth industrial revolution and that colleges should/must provide critical thinkers, problem
solvers and design thinkers. It goes without saying that South Africa needs a strong technical base
to grow the economy.
In terms of the above, the implementation of Centres of Specialisation, is a crucial intervention
and imperative to produce artisans and entrepreneurs across a range of economic sectors. This is
especially needed when South Africa embarks on its infrastructure investment programme. In this
regard West Coast TVET College has high expectations of its Centre of Specialisation located on its
Vredenburg Campus.
It is generally acknowledged that TVET Colleges will have to up their game and lift their performance,
especially its throughput rate. It should however be mentioned that the College achieved a good
throughput rate in 2018. It has been reported that the Minister of Higher Education and Training will
be driving a turnaround strategy in terms of TVET Colleges. TVET Colleges have an opportunity to
develop sites of good practice. However, what is required is a change in society’s confidence in and
perception of the sector. It calls for a rebranding and repositioning of TVET Colleges into quality
institutions.
I have also made reference to the impact of the fourth phase of the industrial revolution and especially
the disruptive impact of technological innovations on teaching and learning, curriculum renewal
and the research agenda of the institution. These changes will obvious pose challenges for the
leadership and management of the institution. However, these are challenges which would require
greater institutional responsiveness and innovativeness.
The institution needs to be commended for engaging in a robust strategic planning exercise. It is
however imperative that the identified strategic goals are implemented and monitoring and evaluation
is constantly/regularly undertaken to ensure we achieve the strategic goals.
The Change Management Process is also making steady progress. It is important to get the institution
change ready and to empower the stakeholders to engage meaningfully with the change agenda.
West Coast TVET College is centrally placed to respond to the expectation of contributing to the
skills base in South Africa and the region. A person once said change is brought about by ordinary
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2: MESSAGE FROM THE COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON

2018 has indeed been a challenging and demanding period for West Coast TVET College especially
given the transitional leadership phase the institution found itself in. However, the institution
progressed substantively despite being in a state of transition.

people doing extraordinary things and that we can shape the future. It is something West College
TVET College should always strive to achieve.
2019 will obviously generate and bring its own challenges. As an institution it needs a major response
from the leadership and management to meet those expectations and challenges in the interest of
the region and nation.
As the institution enters a new phase in terms of its development and with a new incoming Council,
I can only, on behalf of the current Council, wish you well on your future journey and to remind you
that as you build and create your destiny that servant leadership will always be core to taking the
College forward.
Allow me also to suggest, as you advance on your journey to give meaningful content to your core
mandate, that you would continue to remain committed to and intensively and passionately invested
in (a) enhancing the extent and reach of skills development and (b) making a difference in the quality
of life of the broader community and region you are serving. It is indeed a noble cause which must
be pursued in the best interest of this rural and poor region.
As Council we wish to acknowledge the contribution of the Management of the College under the
leadership of the Acting Principal, Mr Lungisa Mbulawa, to the growth and development of the
institution. Council also acknowledge the contribution of the lecturers and support staff.
As outgoing Council, we remain optimistic about the prospects and potential of West Coast TVET
College and the role it will play in bridging the divide between rural and urban in South Africa, especially
given its multi-campus nature within a rural context and the accompanying challenges it poses.
Greater tolerance and the acceptance and respect for the different dimensions and manifestations of
diversity must be one of the core values underpinning the institution and a key imperative as it travels
the road of institutional transformation.
Lastly, allow me to express a sincere word thanks and appreciation to the outgoing Council for their
governance role and extend a warm word of welcome to the incoming Council. We wish them well
as they give effect to their important governance role.
On behalf of Council I wish the institution well for the future as you live your vision, mission and core
values. As you advance on the road ahead take into consideration what Einstein once said: “Learn
from yesterday, live for today, hope and act [my own two words inserted] for tomorrow”. Our best
wishes accompany you on the road ahead.
Auf wiedersehen!!
.

__________________________________
Prof AC Redlinghuis
College Council Chairperson
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Some of our notable achievements are as follows:
•
Institutionalisation of Change management process
•
Establishment of the Ethics Committee within the institution
•
An unqualified audit outcome
•
An intensive strategic planning workshop
•
Top Placement College in the country
•
Steady growth of student numbers
•
In the top 10 colleges for National Certificate Vocational results
•
Nominated for Centre of Specialisation by Department of Higher Education & Training
•
Implemented UNISA partnership
•
Establish a Research Committee to institutionalise the research in the institution.
Academic results are improving; we are raising the WCC flag high nationally. The challenges of
student dropouts are not insurmountable for us, a lot of our students are dropping out for various
reasons, but we are busy attending to the challenges.
It will be reminiscent of me not to mention some few challenges we experienced in 2018. Firstly we
are a rural college, in the middle of farming community, besides it being a challenge on its own; it
also carries a host of other challenges, notably:
•
•
•

Transportation of students
Poor internet connectivity
Few students would want to come to us, to those that come; obviously we would not have been
their preferred first choice. (This is one of the reasons of dropouts).

Obviously the college has put some mechanisms in place to address some of these challenges.
But some challenges are beyond our area of operation. Examples include the transportation of
students, the ideal solution would be to buy fleet of busses to ferry students, but unfortunately this
may sway us from our mandate, we are still busy to try and engage our stakeholders, especially the
government to assist in that regard.
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3 THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S FOREWORD

The year 2018 was both challenging and productive year for West Coast TVET College. Besides the
challenges, the institution achieved some important milestones and made progress as per our 2018
Annual Performance Plan.

Our occupational numbers have grown and the certification rate in the occupational programmes
has improved as well. We are proud to have hard working staff; we attribute all this growth to their
efforts. We saw last year the implementation of Agricultural programme at Citrusdal Campus, This
programme has taken off very well, and is promising good results.
The College Council’s term of office is coming to an end on the 31st March 2019. This is their last
annual report for the institution. I want to take this opportunity to personally thank our outgoing
College Council Chairperson, Professor Aubrey Redlinghuis for his dedication. His commitment
to the sector especially our college is distinctive. Prof has navigated through difficult times and
continues to avail his expertise for the benefit of the institution we salute you Prof. In the same
breath, I want to thank the entire College Council for the leadership and guidance that they provided
to our institution. Your contribution has not gone unnoticed. I wish you good luck with your future
endeavours.
Last but not least, I want to thank the college management and staff members for ensuring that we
achieved our Annual targets and we are working towards breaking new grounds.

__________________________________
Mr Lungisa Mbulawa
Acting Chief Executive Officer/Principal
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In my opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of West Coast TVET College for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.
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4: STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
1.
All information and amounts disclosed throughout the Annual Report are consistent.
2.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Department of Higher Education and Training.
3.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant standards, frameworks and
guidelines issued by National Treasury.
4.
The Accounting Officer, i.e. the Chief Executive Officer/Principal, is responsible for the preparation of the Annual
Financial Statements and for the judgements made in this document.
5.
The Accounting Officer, i.e. the Chief Executive Officer/Principal, is responsible for establishing and implementing a
system of internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the performance information, the human resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.
6.
The Auditor-General and/or external auditors express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

5.1

VISION, MISSION AND VALUE STATEMENTS

VISION

5: STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

To be an internationally
recognised TVET
institution responsive
to the skills
development and
training needs of the
21st century

5.2

10

VALUES

MISSION
To provide TVET services
of relevance and have a
responsive
programme
qualification
mix
by
training students to:
• be skilled and capable
• have access to and
success in Higher
Education
• exploit
entrepreneurship
opportunities.

Respect
Motivation
Fairness
Honesty & Integrity
Quality Driven &
Responsive
• Responsibility and
Accountability
•
•
•
•
•

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
The strategic goals of the college are as follows:
•

Strategic Goal 1: To provide quality technical and vocational education and training
services and increase academic achievement and success of students.

•

Strategic Goal 2: To have adequate infrastructure and systems in place to increase and
provide effective services to students.

•

Strategic Goal 3: To develop partnerships and maintain good stakeholder relations
to increase the number of students who are adequately prepared to enter the labour
market or further and higher learning opportunities.

•

Strategic Goal 4: To ensure continuous business excellence in terms of good corporate
governance and effective management of all college resources as well as information
and data reporting.

•

Strategic Goal 5: To monitor and evaluate all college processes in terms of the
framework for TVET college performance and report quarterly in this regard.
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6.1

Legislative Framework

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act,
No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational education and training (TVET) colleges
are required to produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional
reporting requirement established by the Minister. Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges
to annually report to the Minister in respect of its performance and its use of available resources.
In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the college in terms of achievement of its
strategic and performance objectives.

6.2

Legislative and Other Mandates

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act,
No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational education and training (TVET) colleges
are required to produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional
reporting requirement established by the Minister. Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges
to annually report to the Minister in respect of its performance and its use of available resources.
In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the college in terms of achievement of its
strategic and performance objectives.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The National Qualifications Framework (NQF) Act 67/2008;
The Higher Education (HE) Act 101/1997;
The Skills Development Act 97/1998 and Amendments;
The Higher Education Laws Amendment Act 21/2011;
The Higher Education and Training Laws Amendment Act 23/2012;
The National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS) Act 56/1999;
South African Council of Educators (SACE) Act 31/2000;
Labour Relations Act 66/1995 and Amendments;
Employment of Educators Act 76/1998;
General Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act 58/2001.
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6: LEGISLATION AND OTHER DIRECTIVES

West Coast College is enjoined by Section 44(3) of the Act, read in conjunction with section 25(3)
of the same Act to prepare and submit to the Minister for Higher Education and Training an annual
report.
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PART B:
GOVERNANCE
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CONSTITUTION OF THE COLLEGE COUNCIL AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
i)

The membership of the Council were:
Prof Aubrey Redlinghuis (Chairperson - External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation:
Strategic & Institutional Planning, Quality Assurance.
Ms Zuziwe Zantsi (Deputy Chairperson- External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation:
Human Resource Development, Academic Student Support Specialist)
Mr Lungisa Mbulawa (Acting Chief Executive Officer/Principal– Internal)
Ms Johanna Stoffels (Council Member- External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation:
Active Community Engagement and Involvement)
Dr Keith Jacobs (Council Member- External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Educational,
Leadership)
Ms Elmarie Du Plessis (Council Member- External - Section 10(6), Specialisation:
Legal, Financial)
Mr Hendri Kok (Council Member- External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Financial,
Accounting)
Mr Kevin Nangle (Council Member- External - Section 10(4)(d), Specialisation: Donor)
Mr Christopher Maans (Council Member-External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation:
Active Community Engagement and Involvement)
Professor Francis Sonn (Council Member-External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation:
Education – resigned 28 August 2018)
Ms Nomathemba Dapula (Academic Board representative – Internal)
Mr Thomas Obdrabu (Support Staff representative - Internal)
Mr Phumzile Nkuzo (Lecturing/Academic Staff representative - Internal)
Ms Milisa Masiso (SRC President - Internal – resigned 30 June 2018)
Mr Luthando Luhabe (SRC Deputy President - Internal – term of office concluded 31
December 2018)
Mr Ayanda Cloete (SRC Secretary - Internal – term of office concluded 31 December
2018 – to replace SRC President resignation)

ii)

This is the fifth year of a five year term for the current council. The Council operated with
16 members. Appointments were made in the 2015 in terms of Sections 10(4) and 10(6)
of the CET Act. Two vacancies still exists. The two Student Representative Council
members were replaced in 2018.

iii)

Compliance to the College Charter ensured functionality of the College Council.
All Council members and Academic Board members signed the College Code of Conduct.
A declaration of interest register is signed before every Council, Academic Board and
Council Committee meeting commences.

WEST COAST COLLEGE 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

7: REPORT OF COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON

7.1
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Structure

COLLEGE COUNCIL

Mandatory

Executive

Academic
Board

Academic
Board

Audit & Risk

Conditions of
Employment

Finance

Planning &
Resource

Strategy and Planning
Council reviewed and approved the following college strategies and plans in 2018:
•
Strategic Plan 2019
•
Annual Performance Plan 2018
•
Operational Plan 2018
•
College Budget 2018
•
College Annual Report 2017
•
Committees of Council Work plans

College Councill during 2018
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7.2

REPORTS BY COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

i)

Audit committee
a.

Introduction
This Audit & Risk Committee Annual Report is for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2018 and includes
the opinion of the Audit & Risk Committee on the reliance to be placed on the internal control and reporting
systems of the College. The opinion is based on the Committee’s consideration of the College’s Risk
Register, the internal auditor’s reports, a draft of the external auditor’s Management Letter, the ethics offers
reports and other work commissioned by the Committee during the year, and on discussions at its meetings
and workshops.
Internal auditor
The College had an Internal Audit Unit throughout 2018 Financial year.
Internal audit reports
This report refers only to those final internal audit reports that have been received and considered by the
Audit & Risk Committee during the financial year under consideration and up to the date of this report.
During 2018 and up to the point of writing, the Committee has received and considered several internal
audit reports.
External auditor
AGSA are appointed External Auditors of West Coast TVET College
Ethics Officer
The College had an Ethics Office function throughout 2018.
Ethics reports
This report refers only to those final ethics reports that have been received and considered
by the Audit & Risk Committee during the financial year under consideration and up to the date of this report.
During 2018 and up to the point of writing, the Committee has received and considered four ethics reports

b.

Audit Committee assessment
This section provides the Audit & Risk Committee’s assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of
institutional arrangements during 2018 and up to the date of this report.
Risk management, control, and governance
The Audit & Risk Committee has monitored and considered the effectiveness of the College’s risk
management, control, and governance throughout 2018. These arrangements, together with a values-based
ethical culture, support the College in fulfilling its policies, aims, and objectives, enabling the College to
identify, understand, and manage its principal risks, and to be accountable and transparent in its governance.
The Committee has noted that there has been continuous improvement across the College’s activities: the
College is making clear and sustained efforts to understand, communicate, and incorporate best practice in
risk management, governance, and internal controls.
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Economy, efficiency, and effectiveness (value for money)
The Committee has monitored the effectiveness of the College’s financial controls, systems, and management
structures in place for promoting efficiency, effectiveness, and economy in the use of public funds and other
resources.
The Committee has noted the continuing adoption of and improvement in financial procedures and management
practices designed to support the achievement of value for money and institutional effectiveness.
Data integrity
The Audit & Risk Committee has monitored the effectiveness of the College’s management and quality assurance of
data submitted to DHET and to other funding bodies. Internal audit reviews of various aspects of data management
have been conducted in the year for which substantial assurance was given.
c.

Meetings

The Audit & Risk Committee had four Quarterly meetings and one special meeting in 2018.
d.

Terms of reference

The Audit & Risk Committee’s terms of reference are set out in the Audit & Risk Committee Charter of DHET
o

to keep under review the effectiveness of the College’s internal systems of financial and other control;

o

to advise the Council on matters relating to the external and internal auditors including their appointment,
the provision by the auditors of any additional services outside the scope of their regular responsibilities, the
remuneration of the auditors, and any questions relating to the resignation or dismissal of auditors;

o

to ensure that sufficient resources are made available for internal audit;

o

to approve proposals for internal audit put forward by the internal auditors;

o

to review annually with the external auditors the nature and scope of the external audit;

o

to consider any reports submitted by the auditors, both external and internal;

o

to monitor the implementation of any recommendations made by the internal auditors;

o

to satisfy themselves that satisfactory arrangements are adopted throughout the College for promoting
economy, efficiency, effectiveness, and risk management;

o

to establish appropriate performance measures and to monitor annually the performance and effectiveness
of the external and internal auditors;

o

to consider, in consultation with the external auditors, (i) any financial statements annexed to the abstract of
accounts, including the auditors’ report, and (ii) any statement provided by the Council on the governance of
the College;

o

to ensure that all significant losses are properly investigated and that the internal and external auditors, and
where appropriate the Department of Higher Education and Training, are informed;

o

to oversee the College’s policy on fraud and irregularity, and to ensure that they are informed of any action
taken under that policy;
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o

to make an annual report to the Council and the Department of Higher Education and Training;

o

to forward minutes of their meetings to the Council.
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e.

Internal audit
Provider
The College had an Internal Audit Department since 2015.
Review of appointment
The performance of the internal auditors is considered annually by the Committee.
Review of internal audit
Internal Audit Strategy, Risk Based Operational Plan and Internal Audit Charter were considered and
approved by the Audit & Risk Committee for 2018 Financial year.
The Internal Audit reports for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 were received by the Audit &
Risk Committee. These reports were in terms of the Approved Risk Based Audit Plan.
Review of audit risk assessment and strategy
Internal audit plans are planned annually by department and function on the basis of the weighted risks and
ownership identified in the College’s key risk register.
Review of audit reports
The Committee considered all reports submitted by the internal auditor. Each internal audit report is assigned
to a member of the Committee for detailed consideration. The member then presented the findings to the
Committee, highlighting any key points and/or concerns.

f.

External audit
Provider
External Auditors of West Coast TVET College is AGSA.
Review of the management letter
The Audit Committee considered the report of AGSA with the remarks on auditing and accounting matters,
detailed control observations, and other observations on the College.

g.

Ethics Management
The Audit & Risk Committee has monitored the effectiveness of the College’s ethics management function
and reviews the following commitments to be fulfilled by the ethics office:
•

Conducting an Ethics Risk Assessment

•

Positioning the Ethics Strategy to address the Ethics Risks identified

•

Reviewing Ethics Codes and Policies

•

Institutionalisation of Ethics (Communication strategies, Recruitment and Selection processes,
Orientation of new employees, Performance Management and reward systems, Training and
awareness campaigns, Monitoring and reporting systems)

•

Monitoring and Reporting (Institutionalising and managing a confidential reporting system i.e. an
ethics whistleblowing line as well as an ethics helpdesk, appropriate consequence management
procedures)

Provider
The College had an Ethics Office since August 2017.
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Review of appointment
The performance of the ethics officer is considered annually by the Committee.
Review of ethics management
The functions of the ethics office were considered and approved by the Audit & Risk Committee for 2018
financial year.
The Ethics reports for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 were received by the Audit & Risk
Committee. These reports were drafted in terms of the Ethics Management Strategy and include four main
items:
1)

Programme implementation

2)

Trends (Ethics risk assessments, Declarations of interest, Gift registers, Training, Helpline reports,
Hotline reports)

3)

Critical incidents

4)

Strategic considerations

Review of ethics reports
The Committee considered all reports submitted by the ethics officer. Each ethics report is assigned to
a member of the Committee for detailed consideration. The member then presented the findings to the
Committee, highlighting any key points and/or concerns.
h.

Other work undertaken
Statement of internal control
The Council is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. The Audit & Risk
Committee supports the Council in this role through the following processes:
o

The Council received periodic reports from the Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee concerning
internal control and received the minutes of all meetings of the Audit & Risk Committee;

o

The Audit & Risk Committee received regular reports from the internal auditor, which include the
internal auditor’s independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of
internal control and risk management, together with recommendations for improvement;

o

The Council’s review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of
the internal auditor.

o

The Audit & Risk Committee reviewed and reported on the implementation of recommendations
made and agreed in the regular audit cycle and other investigations.

Review of institution’s risk management strategy
The College’s approach to risk management
The College pursues good practice in Risk Management, and endeavours to comply fully with PFMA and
other statutory requirements. The College’s view of acceptable risk is derived from a balanced view of
all the risks in its operating environment. Risks are prioritized and assessed according to qualitative and
quantitative measures. The strategy is as follows:

18
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o

A Risk Policy is reviewed and revised regularly;

o

The identification of the fundamental risks affecting the College and its Departments These are
reviewed regularly to ensure that the full scope of the College’s activities is covered;

o

Determining the appropriate risk appetite and level of exposure for the College as a whole;

o

Implementation of arrangements to manage fundamental risks and examination of the effectiveness
of those arrangements. Where risk management is judged weak, poorly understood, or limited in
effect, controls have been and will be enhanced;

o

Allocating responsibility for the management of risks to senior management;

o

A review of risks and their management at least once a year.

Risk management – the role of the Audit & Risk Committee and its auditors
i.

Audit & Risk Committee
The Audit & Risk Committee provides advice to the Council on the effectiveness of the Risk Steering
Committee and on the internal control system, including the College’s system for the management
of risk. The Audit & Risk Committee received the College’s key risk register at its quarterly meetings.
Members of the Audit & Risk Committee bring their copies of the key risk register to all meetings to
help inform discussions of audit reports and the impact on risk management, and also to plan the
audit cycle.

ii.

Internal audit programme
The internal audit programme is responsible for providing independent and objective assurance on
the College’s operations in order to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the College’s internal
control systems. The internal audit strategy is developed around the College’s objectives and
assessment of the fundamental risks including an evaluation of the effectiveness of the College’s risk
management process. Risk management arrangements are a standard and continuing aspect of all
departmental audits.

iii.

External audit
External audit informs the Audit Committee on the operation of the internal financial controls reviewed
as part of the annual audit.

i

Other work
The Audit & Risk Committee has a number of standing agenda items: Value for Money (VFM), Fraud, Risk
Management and IT Governance. For each of these items it asks for updates from senior management of
the College and also seeks assurance from the internal auditors.
(a)

Value for money
The College’s Planning and Resource Committee (P&R) and Finance Committee oversees VFM
reporting for the College. The internal auditors consider VFM as a standard item in institution audits.

(b)

Fraud
Under the Financial Regulations, any member of staff must report immediately to the Internal Audit
and Human Resource any suspicion of bribery, fraud, or other irregularity. College has a fraud Hotline
to enable whistle-blowers to report any suspected or instances of Fraud.
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(c) Risk management
The Committee’s consideration of the College’s Risk Management Strategy has included continuous
reviews of the Risk Register which is regularly updated and presented at each Audit & Risk Committee
Meeting.
ii)

Quality Assurance
In 2018, the West Coast TVET College was recertified with the new ISO 9001:2015 International
Standard by the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS).
Maintaining the ISO 9001:2015 certification of the West Coast TVET College continues to be a
challenge due to organisational growth in student and staff numbers.
Quality Awareness amongst staff at all levels of the organization has improved for the period of this
report. Quality Awareness and the importance of compliance to the ISO 9001:2015 International
Standard will continue to be priority and has the commitment of the Top Management of the College.
During the review period a number of West Coast TVET College policy documents were introduced
to staff members through the electronic QMS after being approved by the College Council.
•

Internal Systems Audits
Internal audits to the requirements of the International (ISO) Standard, College Policies and
College Procedures were conducted at campuses and the various departments at central
office. This was done in line with the approved 2018 Internal Audit Plan.
Non-compliances were reported to campus management and departmental managers, nonconformance reports (CAR’s) were issued accordingly and corrective actions requested.
Review Meetings with Process Owners were held on a continuous basis to review, modify
and streamline all relevant College Process Maps. For this review period, a total of fourteen
(14) Policy documents and fifty five (55) Support documents and Forms were reviewed or
introduced and approved and these approved documents are available on the electronic
Quality Management System (QMS).
The annual Management Review meeting, a requirement of ISO 9001:2015, was held in
November 2018 where documents, processes and procedures as well as other key aspects
of the West Coast TVET College Quality Management System were reviewed by Top
Management.
The benefits of using Quality Tools such as Continuous Improvement, Corrective Actions,
Preventive Actions and Non Conformances (NCR’s) were highlighted at management and
staff meetings.
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•

Staff and Student Surveys
(a)

Student Enrolment Survey
The purpose of the survey was to identify gaps, implement actions and utilise opportunities
to continually improve the campus environment and registration processes. This survey was
conducted in March 2018 for the new NC(V) Level 2, Report 191: N1 and N4 students.

(b)

Recruiter Survey
This survey is being conducted as it is part of the drive to improve customer service and to
respond adequately by putting corrective actions in place. This survey was conducted in
March 2018.

(c)

Staff Registration Survey
This survey is directed to staff to get their impression about the college’s registration process.
Their feedback is important in order to enable the college to improve its registration process
and to enhance customer service. This survey was conducted in April 2018.

(d)

Ethics Risk Assessment Survey
The purpose of the survey was to measure employee perceptions of ethical as well as
unethical behaviour within the working environment. As a result, perceived ethical behavioural
risks were identified.

(e)

Student Exit Survey
The purpose of the survey was to find additional approaches to continually improve the
services, training and the learning environment; to ensure that all the students have equal
opportunities, gained the knowledge and experience needed for them to achieve their goals
and prepare them for the future. This survey was conducted in July and October 2018 for the
exit NC(V) Level 4 and Report 191: N6 students.

Occupational Health and Safety
The following activities formed part of the OH&S management system:
•

Regular review of equipment and facilities at residences, campus classrooms and workshops in order to
identify, address and close any possible gaps.

•

Supply and replacement of Fire Fighting equipment at campuses and at existing residences of the college.

•

Regular Health and Safety Inspections were conducted at campuses and the central office by trained H&S
Representatives in order to ensure compliance to local, provincial and national requirements and ensure the
continued safety of students and staff.

•

In October 2018, Higher Power Protection (Pty) Ltd conducted health and safety compliance audits at the
various campuses. All five campuses received certificates of compliance.
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iii)

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee was fully constituted during 2018. Four Quarterly and one Special meeting were held. The
Finance Committee performed as follows:
o

Reviewed the process for the production of AFS;

o

Reviewed and approved draft AFS and recommended adjustments;

o

The Finance Committee reviewed the AFS before issue to AG;

o

Reviewed and approved Finance policies;

o

Performed an overview consultation with AG;

o

Approved the 2019 Annual Budget and Fees;

o

Assessed funding sustainability;

o

Assessed capital expenditure programme and the sources of funding;

o

Reviewed the capacity building and training strategy for staff of the Finance Department;

o

Assessed the college business strategy in context of going concern; and

o

Assessed fraud and corruption potential and deterrence action.

iv)

Conditions of Employment committee (CEC)

The CEC Committee was fully constituted during 2018. Four Quarterly and one Special meeting were held. The
CEC performed as follows:
o

Ensured that the College complied with all relevant provisions in the CET Act, the Labour Relations Act, the
Basic Conditions of Employment Act, the Employment Equity Act and any other applicable law.

o

Determined staff working conditions, privileges, etc.

o

Ensured that appropriate systems of recruitment and selection, performance management, employee
termination, skills development policies, employee and contract administration and employee relations have
been established.

o

Ensured that the organisational structure of the college is aligned to meet the strategic objectives of the
institution and that the systematic matching and placing of staff into the posts have been undertaken.

o

Ensured that sufficient and appropriate lecturers and support staff are appointed and that the following
factors are taken into account when they are appointed:
a.

the ability of the candidate

b.

the principle of equity

c.

the need to redress the past injustices

d.

the need for representivity

o

Adopted a Disciplinary Code for Lecturers and Support Staff in accordance with the College Statute.

o

Recommended to Council policies and procedures for managing staff and ensure that monitoring and
reporting systems and formats are in place and delegations of authority are established and implemented.

v)

Planning and Resource Committee (Planco)

The Planco Committee was fully constituted during 2018. Four Quarterly and three Special meetings were held.
The Planco Committee performed as follows:
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o

Oversaw and reviewed the planning, organisation and review of the College’s strategic plan.

o

Monitored the implementation of the College’s Strategic Plan.
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7.3

o

Monitored the implementation of the College’s Annual Performance Plan.

o

Monitored the allocation and usage of the College’s resources in line with the objectives of its strategic plan.
a.

Monitored the implementation of the Marketing and Recruitment Strategy.

b.

Monitored the implementation of the Fundraising Strategy.

c.

Recommended Consumption targets in line with the Budget to Council.

d.

Monitored consumption usage.

e.

Recommended Recycling targets to Council.

f.

Monitored Recycling usage.

o

Reviewed the allocation and usage of the College’s resources as per the Annual Performance Plans.

o

Recommended to Council policies related to managing resources more effectively.

ACADEMIC BOARD
The Academic Board was fully constituted during 2018. Four Quarterly meetings were held. The Academic Board
performed as follows:
o

Certification
a.

Monitored the results analysis.

b.

Recommended to Council the College Improvement plan.

c.

Recommended to Council the Academic Support budget that catered for: Tutors; Guest Lecturers;
and Additional support materials.

d.
o

Monitored effective Teaching and Learning by checking reports on Academic Process maps.

Implementation of Attendance & Punctuality Policy
a.

Monitored the implementation of this policy – reported on stages as per the policy.

b.

Monitored evidence of advocacy – students have signed documents to acknowledge and accept the
policy.
Less than 15% of students were not allowed to sit for the subjects exams due to policy implementation.

o

o

o

Retention Plan
a.

Recommended Retention Plan to the Council.

b.

Monitored implementation of the plan.

Throughput
a.

Set the targets for throughput rate.

b.

Monitored the process map on the implementation of the strategies.

Placement
a.

o

Programme Qualifications Mix
a.

o

No additional qualifications were requested for implementation in 2018.

Research Committee
a.

o

Monitored implementation of the plan. Plan effective with 100% placement rate achieved.

A Subcommittee of the Academic Board with a Research agenda was established.

Staff awards
a.

Hosted inaugural Staff Awards event to recognise and award individual performing staff.

b.

Campuses were ranked according to their results and attendance.
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7.4

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL REPORT

The SRC was fully constituted during 2018 across all campuses. The executive members performed as follows:
•

Induction
►

All SRC members were taken through a 3 days’ workshop where they were taken through and capacitated
on student governance, leadership as well as policies of the college.

•

Meetings
►

•

7 executive meetings and 2 general SRC meeting were held.

Closing Ceremony
►

The SRC executive had a closing and awards ceremony at Malmesbury Correctional Services, where all
chairpersons did a presentation on all the activities and involvement at their campuses.

•

Academic Activities
►

Tutors were identified in all campuses to assist those students that are struggling in various subjects.

►

For the motivational initiative, Top Achievers were identified and were awarded with medals per programme.

►

Two levels of Debate competitions were held. 24 students were chosen to participate at college level and
the top 2 students represented the college at the TVET Colleges National Debate in Bloemfontein.

•

Student Awareness
►

The SRC assisted during the registration drives and advocating and encouraging their fellow students on the
importance of 80% attendance policy and signing of Schedule of Particulars for the Bursaries.

•

Student Activities
The following campaigns were hosted across campuses:
i)

Health and Wellness
►

Gender Diversity & Sexuality;

►

Red Lip Campaign to speak against Sexual Abuse;

►

Suicidal and Depression;

►

Bullying;

►

Wear a Doekie Day to support Women’s month and Cancer Awareness;

►

Healthy Lifestyle;

►

National Disability;

►

Casual Day (Funds were raised to assist Robinvale Special School);

►

Recycling;

►

SRC members also assisted in the 15 HIV/AIDS The Higher Education and Training HIV/AIDS
Programme (HEAIDS) which is a national facility to develop and support the HIV mitigation
programmes with 15 activation days. 2 350 students were tested with awareness programme
awareness on circumcision and family planning;

►

Substance Abuse with drug testing with 1 180 students were tested;

►

Community Clean Up Campaign Day; and

►

16 Days of Activism Against Gender-Based Violence is an international campaign to challenge
violence against women and girls.

Community organisations were visited, food parcels and clothes were donated to these following
organisations: South African Police Services; Thusong Centre; Crèches; Babbel & Krabbel; Badisa;
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Haasbekkie; Heuwelrus Old Age Home; VGK Church; Care givers Hospice; and Gouer Old age home (for
Arbour Day).
ii)

iii)

iv)

Residences Campaigns
►

Hygiene

►

Being a team player

►

Risky behaviours

►

Peer Pressure

►

Managing Stress/risky situation

►

Conflict Resolutions

►

Taking responsibility for yourself

Social Activities
►

Miss Valentine

►

Modelling Show

►

Mandela Day

►

Residence movie night, fun games days, car wash

Other Activities
►

Women’s prayers meetings

►

Students Christian prayer meetings

►

Disciplinary issues
•

►

Members were also in involved in Student Disciplinary Cases.

Sport and Recreational Activities
•

Athletics, Cricket, Chess, Soccer, Rugby and Netball as well as Indigenous games were
hosted as the Sports Programme for 2018. A total of R4 275 was raised in lieu of fundraising.

•

Athletics – 50 students participated in the provincial Athletic games in with 1 student achieving
3 gold, 3 silver and 5 bronze medals.

•

Rugby – students also participated in the provincial Rugby Tournament and were crowned the
champions.
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•

Intercampus League Games were played.
Champions for 2018 for the various codes are as follows:

•

o

Rugby:			

Vredenburg Campus

o

Netball:			

Atlantis Campus

o

Soccer (Males):		

Atlantis Campus

o

Soccer (Females):		

Atlantis Campus

Campuses also participated in their local community games in the following codes: Rugby,
Soccer and Netball.

►

Heritage Music Festival
•

About 200 students attended a Heritage Music Festival. R4 114 was raised from the
fundraising initiative.

•

55 Students from the Citrusdal Campus represented the college in the Western Province
Choir Festival held in Malmesbury with other Western Cape TVET Colleges during October
2018.

►

Monthly Stipends
•

Stipends were paid to 39 SRC members till November 2018.

SRC Executive 2018
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NUMBER OF
MANAGEMENT
4
Residence and
Facilities Manager

NUMBER OF
LECTURERS
150
Human
Resources

Academic
Manager

Deputy Principal
Corporate Services

Information
Technology

Academic
Manager

Student Admin
Coordinator

MIS
Manager

Head of
Departments

Academic
Manager

Deputy Principal
Education
and Training

Senior
Lecturers

Placement
Coordinator

5 Campus Managers

Principal

Student Support
Manager

Fundraising
Manager

Financial Aid
Coordinator

Marketing
Manager

Supply Chain
Coordinator

Finance

Senior Ethics Officer

Asset
Coordinator

Chief Financial Officer
Finance

Internal Audit
Officer

Quality Assurance
Officer

Deputy Principal
Innovation and
Development

Internal Auditor

Quality Assurance
Manager

Governance by College Council

8. REPORT BY PRINCIPAL ON MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION
8.1
College Organisational Structure

The Staff Establishment was as follows:

NUMBER OF
SUPPORT STAFF
237

The 2018 year managerial and administrative achievements are measured in terms of the goals and objectives achieved
as set out in the Operational Plan developed.
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There are five campuses: Atlantis, Citrusdal, Malmesbury, Vredenburg and Vredendal with a central
office in Malmesbury.
We have five residences accommodating 1 140 students. The facilities in Malmesbury and Atlantis
are leased.

Vredendal
Campus
280 km

Vredenburg
Campus
100 km

Citrusdal
Campus
116 km

WESTCOAST
COLLEGE
CENTRAL OFFICE

Malmesbury
Campus

Atlantis
Campus
35 km

Average distance - 133 km
9.1.1 Population information
West Coast TVET College serves a total community of more than 390,000 people. (www.
capetown.gov.za). The population composition in terms of race is as follows: Coloured
67.1%; African 16.5%; White 15.8%.
9.1.2 Education
The percentage of the adult population which have no schooling is 8%. The functional
literacy of residents that have grade 9 or attended Adult Basic Education Training up till
level four is 26%. (West Coast District Municipality IDP 2011-2015).
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9. COLLEGE PERFORMANCE AND ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT

West Coast TVET College is situated in the Western Cape and serves the West Coast district and
the following municipalities: City of Cape Town, Bergrivier, Saldanha, Cederberg and Matzikama.
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9.1.3 Economy
The major economic drivers in the region are: Finance and Business Services – 25.6%;
Manufacturing Sector – 17.7%; Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing – 14.6%; Wholesale
and retail trade, catering and accommodation – 12.8%. Growth in both Manufacturing
(10%) and Wholesale and retail trade, catering and accommodation (3%) were noted
since the previous report.
9.1.4 Household income and employment
In 2011 the total number of households with no income in the West Coast Region was
8,06%, while the number falling below R9600 per annum was 21,8%. The economically
active persons stood at about 38% (CSIR 2006). The unemployment rate was pegged
at 15.5% in 2007 (Western Cape Provincial Treasury Profile).
9.1.5 Economic Opportunities
The West Coast District is a strong regional development corridor linking the
metropolitan City of Cape Town to the economies of Namibia and Angola in the north.
The region has a burgeoning tourism, aquaculture, alternative energy and oil and gas
industry, with Saldanha identified as an Industrial Development Zone. Over the period of
review, we have partnered to assist in the development of these growth sectors.
9.1.6 College relationships with local authorities and local employers
College partnerships include links with government departments, the municipalities in
the area: City of Cape Town, Bergrivier, Saldanha, Cederberg and Matzikama; and
employers in the different economic sectors e.g. Welding and Engineering.
Key stakeholders include Vaalmac, Dormac, Westacore, Genwest, Filigree, D & C
Engineering, Transnet, Sea Harvest, Atlantis Foundries, ABSA & GRI Wind Steel South
Africa (Pty) Ltd.
The involvement of the Sector Education and Training Authorities remains a key
imperative for the colleges on going skills delivery programmes. We currently have
partnerships with 13 of the SETAs.
Increased occupational programme offerings and placement were done through funding
received from the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
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Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector Education and Training
Authority (CATHSSETA)
Department of Public Works (DPW)
Department of Economic Development and Tourism (DEDAT)
Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and Training
Authority (ETDP)
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority (EWSETA)
Fibre, Processing & Manufacturing Sector Education and Training Authority
(FPMSETA)
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Health and Welfare Sector Education and Training Authority (HWSETA)
Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training
Authority (MERSETA)
Mining Qualifications Authority (MQA)
National Rural Youth Service Corps (NARYSEC)
National Skills Fund (NSF)
Services Sector Education and Training Authority (SERVICES)
Wholesale and Retail Sector Education and Training Authority (W&RSETA)

International Partners
Our current International Partners still include the following:
•
South Birmingham College (United Kingdom)
•
Blackburn College (United Kingdom)
•
Kirkeparken School (Norway)
•
Magdeburg Gastronomie Fachschule (Germany)
•
Stockport College (UK)
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Significant Achievements during the 2018 Academic Year
West Coast TVET College continues to break new ground in increasing access, with another considerable increase in NATED enrolments and the foundational programmes. The increase in the
number of Artisans shows our commitment to the call of the former Minister, Blade Nzimande which
speaks to the Decade of the Artisan.
We have also increased the numbers of students assisted with bursaries with a significant number
from external donors. This is as a result of the Fundraiser appointed and the Fundraising Strategy
which has been approved by the College Council.

10. PERFORMANCE REPORTING

On the academic front, out of the 117 NC(V) Subjects written, 86 are above 80% threshold. Overall
we had 423 Subject distinctions and 21 subjects improved by more than 20% in each subject. 75
class groups had a 100% pass rate. This speaks to the commitment and dedication of lecturers and
support staff and the effective implementation of the Teaching and Learning, Retention and Improvement Plans.
Our placement rates have once again increased, with 80% of our exiting graduates being placed.
On course placement has significantly increased with more students on the various levels placed
as part of the Work Integrated Learning programme. This was made possible with the securing of
contracts which was an increase of 19 achieved last year, exceeding our target significantly, with
industry, SETAs and other funders for stipends, placements and programme offering. As a result,
we’ve recorded an increase in the number of students receiving diplomas. We were also recognised
by DHET for Excellence in Placement and received a Gold Award.
2018 was declared as the Year of the Lecturer and thus saw the launch of the Staff Awards to recognise staff excellence.
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2018 Planned
Target

2018 annual
Achievement

9 274
521
30
264

1.1.2. Number of Headcount enrolment (n)

1.1.3. Number of students enrolled in
artisan-related programmes (n)

1.1.4. Number of students completing
artisan-related programmes (n)

1.1.5. Number of students
in
foundation
or
programmes (n)

150

5

1.1.7. Number of students completing
entrepreneurial programmes (n)

1.1.8. Number of campuses compliant
with student registration and
enrolment
management
standards (n)
5

214

96%

934

21

490

10 909

1

56.10%
91.30%
63.88%
88.93%

1

1

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target not achieved

Planned Target not achieved

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target achieved

Explanatory Remarks

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ACHIEVEMENTS

40%
50%
40%
50%

1

1.2.2. Student support plan reviewed,
implemented and monitored (n)

1.2.3. % Certification in:
• NC(V) Level 4
• N3
• N6
• Occupational

1

1.2.1. Teaching & learning plan
reviewed, implemented and
monitored (n)

Strategic Objective 1.2.: Improve throughput and certification rates

55%

1.1.6. % successful completion of
bridging or foundational learning
programmes

enrolled
bridging

1

1.1.1. Marketing & Communication
strategy
reviewed
and
implemented

Strategic Objective 1.1.: Improve recruitment, placement and selection processes

Performance Indicators

Strategic Goal 1: To provide quality technical and vocational education and training services and increase academic achievement and success of students

10.1 Annual Performance Achievements
STRATEGIC GOALS, OBJECTIVES, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND ANNUAL TARGETS
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40%

20%
20%
20%
50%
50%

50%
60%
50%
88.93%
Planned Target achieved

Planned Target exceeded

100
50

(ii) SETA bursaries

(iii) Other bursaries (specify)
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212

4 140

4 388

Planned Target not achieved
Q1: Afmine (1), Cederberg Municipality (1), Future Managers (2). Q2: Mulilo Economic Development
Advisory Services (1), Group 5 (19), Afrisam (9). Q3: Kliphoek (11), Afrimat (2).

Planned Target exceeded
Q1: MQA (31). Q2: INSETA (66), W&R SETA (19), CATHSETA (11). Q3: MQA (85)

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target exceeded

2018 Planned
Target

2018 annual
Achievement

2.1.2. ICT infrastructure development
strategy reviewed & implemented

2.1.1. Number of existing T&L
facilities refurbished or upgraded
(n)
(i) Classrooms or theoretical
facilities
(ii) Practical facilities
(iii) Other (specify)

1

45

0

1

12

25

25

0

81

25

Strategic Objective 2.1.: Provide adequate systems and infrastructure

Performance Indicators

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target exceeded
Q2: New offices created at Central Office (4) and CEO Boardroom upgraded with AV Projector (1).
Q4: Cabling in offices (ATL) (4); Server Room (MLB) (1); Server Room (CTD) (1); Server Room (VRD)
(1); CEO Boardroom upgraded (1); Air conditioners in offices (CO) (7); Canteen (1); CO offices upgraded
(2); Parking (ATL)(1); Watertanks installed (6); Sickbays (MLB) (1); SRC office (MLB (1); Air conditioners in
offices (MLB) (4); Air conditioners in offices (VRB) (8); CCTV Installations (VRB) (1).

Planned Target exceeded
Q3: Cabling in computer labs (ATL)(3); Cabling in workshops (VRD) (3); Sim room refurbished (ATL) (1);
Hospitality kitchen upgraded (MLB) (2)
Q4: Electrical classroom converted into an electrical lab and refurbished with old computers from the labs.
(VRB)(1); Document camera also installed. Boilermaking workshop upgraded to SDP & TTC (VRB) (1); Data
projector installed (MLB) (1)

Planned Target achieved
Q3: Data projectors installed (25)

Planned Target exceeded

Explanatory Remarks

Strategic Goal 2: To have adequate infrastructure and systems in place to increase and provide effective services to students

2 965

3 115

(i) NSFAS bursaries

1.3.1. Number of Qualifying students
obtaining financial assistance (n)

Strategic Objective 1.3.: Effectively manage bursary administration system

1.2.5. % Funded NC(V) L4 students
obtaining qualification within
stipulated time

1.2.4. % Throughput rate in:
• NC(V) Level 4
• N3
• N6
• Occupational
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5

1

Planned Target not achieved
Q2: 1 Policy approved.

55

65

10

2.3.2. Number of lecturing staff
professionally developed.
Focused intervention on the
following strategic areas: WIL,
Artisan Development, Academic
Support (n)

2.3.3. Number of support and
management staff professionally
developed. Focused intervention
on the following strategic areas:
compliance with PFMA, GRAP,
SCM, CET, PSR) (n)

2.3.4. Number of TVET lecturers placed
in workplaces for specified
periods (n)

26

144

123

95%

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target exceeded
Q1: WPBL (1); Advanced Excel (9); Intermediate Excel (9); ISO 9000 (1); Support (3)
Q2: Supply Chain (2); M & E (9); Wordpress (1); IT (5)
Q3: Campus Management (3); Supply Chain (11); Diversity (5); Financial Administration (5); Student
Support (17); Project Management (10); Labour relations (16); Handyman (15); Evaluation of Qualifications
(18); Asset Management (4);

Planned Target exceeded
Q1: Subject Knowledge (16)
Q2: Subject Knowledge (9)
Q3: Advanced excel (15); Academic Support (40); Renewable Energy (3); W & R (2); Timetabling (4); Train
the trainer (18).
Q4: Project Management (5); Pipe Fitting Staff development/training (2), Mentoring & Coaching (9).

Planned Target achieved

Strategic Goal 3: To develop partnerships and maintain good stakeholder relations to increase the number of students who are adequately prepared tobour

95%

2.3.1. % staff aligned to programme
offerings

Strategic Objective 2.3.: Improve staff capacity to effectively deliver college curriculum and manage college processes

2.2.1. HR policies, processes and systems are operational, compliant
and regularly reviewed and addressed

Strategic Objective 2.2.: Improve Human Resources processes
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2018 Planned
Target

2018 annual
Achievement

32
0
2

2

2
1

10

(i) Other colleges

(ii) Public entities and state departments

(iii) SETAs

(iv) Private business & industry

(v) International

(vi) Schools

660

3.1.2. Number of new signed
agreements (n)

3.1.1. Number of beneficial and
functional college partnerships
(n)

16

0

2

11

3

0

49

702

ment departments, local municipalities, local higher education institutions

Explanatory Remarks

Planned Target exceeded
Q1: Silukhanyo Primary School, John Pama Primary School, Alexander Bay High School, Berzelia Primary
School, Phumlani Primary School, Sinenjongo High School, St Michaels Primary School, Ingcingazethu
Secondary School, Mzamomtsha Primary School, Meulenhof Primary School, Groenheuwel Primary
School, Ihlumelo Secondary School, Emithini Primary School
Q4: Nalikamva Primary School, Grosvenor Primary School, High School Kakamas

Planned Target not achieved

Planned Target achieved
Q3: ABSA (Placement)
Q4: South African Student Cities Network NPC, (Tourism Graduates Placement)

Planned Target exceeded
Q1: HWSETA (Lecturer Development),
Q2: W & R SETA (Lecturer Development), MQA (Bursaries), INSETA (Bursaries), CHIETA (Placement),
CATHSSETA (Bursaries), W&R SETA (Bursaries), CETA (Programmes)
Q3: W&R Seta (Placement), FP&M SETA (Placement), Transport Seta (TETA)
Also received extension from Transport Seta from 12 to 18 Months funding for Placement.

Planned Target exceeded
Q1: MOU concluded with MOT SA, Western Cape Emergency Services
Q4: Statistics South Africa

Not applicable

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target exceeded:
Q2: 21 new Host Agreements signed. African Consulting Surveyors, Palisade World, Three Fountain
Operations, Lulaway Holdings, South African Leader’s Network, Tronox Namakwa Sands, Kareekraans
Boerdery, Bosasa Youth Development Centre, Rhodes Food Group , View From The Top Lodge
Q3: Hellas Financial Services, Ingcingazethu Secondary School, Department of Health: Klipfontein/Mitchell’s
Plain Sub Structure, Department of Health: Worcester, Mzamomtsha Primary School, Meulenhof Primary
School, Groenheuwel Primary School, Witzenberg Rural Development Centre, Sinethemba (Moorreesburg),
Beyond Risk Projects, Ihlumelo Secondary School , Mornayras Trading, CANSA – Malmesbury, Emithini
Primary School, Prince Mshiyeni Memorial Hospital, Old Mutual (Piketberg), Dawid Kruiper Municipality,
Isolomoya Group Pty Ltd, Tip Trans Group
Q4: Nalikamva Primary School, Grosvenor Primary School, Event Hiring Solutions(EHIRE), High School
Kakamas, Bergendal Rooibos (edms) bpk, Sandveld Local Development Agency (SALDA), Cederberg
Matzikama Aids Network, DCS-Goodwood, Brights Hardware, Matzikama Alcohol and Drug Action (MADA),
Miladys Vredendal, Statistics South Africa, Dr Buys & Fry, SINAC GROUP(Pty) LTD

Strategic Objective 3.1.: Facilitate, strengthen and maintain partnerships with industry, govern
both local and international, community organisations and donors

Performance Indicators
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15

17

Number of TVET graduates
tracked and traced (n)

Retain contact with 60% of the
alumni

3.2.3.

3.2.4.
1

300

5

1

300

9

224

2 669

399

3 292

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target exceeded
8 CPUT, 1 USB

Planned Target not achieved
Q1: N6 (52) (43(NSF)+9 (INSETA)
Q2: N6 (41) = 41 (NSF)) Students placed and 8 L4 Placed in China.
Q3: N6 (48) 6- (NSF) 25- (W&RSETA) +17 (TETA) and 25 NCV level Graduates (CHIETA)
Q4: N6 (50) – (FP&M)

Planned Target exceeded

Planned Target not achieved

Planned Target exceeded

2018 Planned
Target

2018 annual
Achievement

Explanatory Remarks

100%
5

4.1.1. % Compliance to
governance standards

4.1.2. Number of Council
members trained in corporate
governance
0

100%

Trained in 2016

Planned Target achieved

Strategic Objective 4.1.: Ensure that College Council is effective in its governance and performance management of college management and staff

Performance Indicators

Strategic Goal 4: To ensure continuous business excellence in terms of good corporate governance and effective management of all college resources as well as information
and data reporting

Number of TVET graduates
placed into Higher Education
programmes (n)

661

(iii) On Exit

3.2.2.

1 902

(ii) Workplace-based experience (WBE)

2 500

1 010

Number of TVET students
placed in workplaces/industry
for specified periods for work
exposure, experiential learning
and/or certification purposes (n)

(i) Workplace exposure (WE)

3.2.1.

Strategic Objective 3.2.: Improve student employability by providing increased workplace-based learning opportunities

(v) Donors

Planned Target exceeded
Q1: Sesikona, Sikho Booksellers, Landbank
Q2: Afmine, Cederberg Municipality, Future Managers, Mulilo Economic Development Advisory Services,
Nedbank Eyethu Community Trust, Group 5, ABSA, Sanlam Foundation, Afrisam, MMR, Shoprite, Coke
Cola, J. Summers
Q3: SANBI, Kliphoek, Afrimat.
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15

100%

1
3

4.1.4. Number of Policies,
processes and procedures
continuously reviewed, improved
and implemented (n)

4.1.5. % Compliance
with national policy of college
examination centres conducting
examinations and assessments

4.1.6. Number of unqualified
audits or assessments (AG) (n)

4.1.7. Number of audits or
assessments (SABS, Enrolment
and Exams) (n)
3

1

100%

14

100%

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target not achieved
Q1: Cellphone Allowance
Q2: Accounting Records Policy; Bank Reconciliation Policy; Control of Gifts and Donations Policy; Creditors
Management Policy; Petty Cash Policy; Unauthorized, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure Policy
Q3: S & T policy
Q4: External Marketing and Communication Policy; Student life in Residences Policy; Research Policy;
Human Resource Strategy Policy; Information and Communication Technology Policy; Supply chain
Management Policy; Fleet Management.

Planned Target achieved

10%

4.2.4. % financial growth
70%

70%

9.9%

1.8%

100%

100%

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target not achieved

Planned Target not achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

2018 Planned
Target

2018 annual
Achievement

4
4

5.1.1. Number of Accurate M & E
quarterly reports submitted (n)

5.1.2. M & E information is used to
address gaps in capacity and
practices

4

4

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Strategic Objective 5.1.: Implement Monitoring and Evaluation (M & E) processes

Performance Indicators

Explanatory Remarks

Strategic Goal 5: To monitor and evaluate all college processes in terms of the framework for TVET college performance and report quarterly in this regard

4.3.1. % Satisfaction rating

Strategic Objective 4.3.: Ensure Service Delivery

5%

100%

4.2.2. % Assets managed

4.2.3. % Debt collection (increase)

100%

4.2.1. % Financial policy controls
implemented

Strategic Objective 4.2.: Effective management systems generate outputs that meet compliance standards

100%

4.1.3. % Compliance
to policies and regulations
applicable to the TVET College
sector

10.2

College Achievement in terms of Expected Outcomes

no

sub OUTCOME Indicators

2019 National
Target

2018
Target

2018
Achievement

Explanatory
Remarks
Planned target
exceeded
2017 has seen, WCC
maintaining the NC(V)

1

1 238 000

Headcount enrolment (n)

9 274

10 909

enrolment numbers,
and an improved pass
rate NATED N4 – N6
has led to an increased
enrolment.

Certification rate (%)
2

NC(V) L4
N3 &
N6 (%)

NC(V) L4: 60%

40%

56.10%

N3: 45%

50%

91.30%

N6: 60%

40%

63.88%

100%

100%

100%

NC(V) L4: 65%

20%

50%

N3: 65%

20%

60%

N6: 65%

20%

50%

1 140

1 140

1 000 000

3 115

4 388

60%

40%

50%

100%

100%

100%

10

26

2 500

3 292

521

490

30

21

264

934

55%

96%

Compliance with national policy of
3

college examination centres conducting
examinations and assessments (%)
Throughput rate (%)

4

NC(V) L4
N3 &
N6 (%)

5
6
7
8
9

Students accommodated in public
TVET college accommodation (n)
Qualifying TVET students obtaining
financial assistance (n)
Funded NC(V) L4 students obtaining
qualification within stipulated time (%)
Compliance to governance standards
(%)
TVET lecturers placed in workplaces
for specified periods (n)

Planned target
achieved
Planned target achieved
Planned target achieved
Planned target
achieved
Planned target
exceeded
Planned target
exceeded
Planned target
exceeded
Planned target
achieved
Planned target
exceeded
Planned target not
achieved
Planned target
achieved
Planned target
achieved

TVET students placed in workplaces/
10

industry for specified periods for work
exposure, experiential learning and/or

Planned target
achieved

certification purposes (n)
11
12

13

14

Students completing artisan-related
programmes (n)
TVET

students

completed

artisan

related programmes (n)
TVET students enrolled in foundation or
bridging programmes (n)
Success rate in foundation or bridging
programmes (%)

Increasing
with 5 000 a
year
50%

WEST COAST COLLEGE 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Planned target not
achieved
Planned

target

not

achieved
Planned

target

exceeded
Planned

target

exceeded

39

10.3

Strategy to deal with underperformance

Our strategy is as follows:
•
To improve Academic Performance: The results will be analysed and the underperforming
subjects identified. An Improvement Plan will be drafted. Staff will be taken through the
Improvement Plan, supported and monitoring the implementation will follow. Buy in from all
stakeholders including the SRC must be obtained.
•
To improve Access: Marketing Strategy to be revised to align with demographics of the area.

40

WEST COAST COLLEGE 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

PART D:
FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

WEST COAST COLLEGE 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

41

11. FINANCIAL REPORTING
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
GENERAL INFORMATION
Controlling entity

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

Financial Statements relate to

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE (Individual entity and not group)

Domicile, legal form and jurisdiction
The College is a Public Technical and Vocational Education and
Training College, constituted in terms of the Continuing Education
and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended (CET Act), and
operates within the Republic of South Africa.
Nature of business and principal activities

To provide continuing education and training to registered
students for all learning and training programmes leading to
qualifications or part qualifications at levels 1 to 4 of the National
Qualifications Framework.

Councillors

1. Prof A Redlinghuis [Chairperson] - Independent
2. Ms Z Zantsi - Independent
3. Dr K Jacobs - Independent
4. Mr K Nangle - Independent
5. Ms J Stoffels - Independent
6. Ms E du Plessis - Independent
7. Mr H Kok - Independent
8. Mr C Maans - Independent
9. Prof F Sonn-Resigned
10. Mr T Obdrabu - College appointed
11. Mr Lungisa Mbulawa (Acting CEO) - College appointed
12. Mr P Nkuzo - College appointed

Acting Principal

Mr Lungisa Mbulawa

Acting Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Ms Nastasshia Miggel

Registered office

02 Loedolf Road
Malmesbury
7300

Business address

02 Loedolf Road
Malmesbury
7300

Postal address

PO Box 935
Malmesbury
7299

Bankers

Absa Bank Limited
Malmesbury
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Auditors

Auditor-General of South Africa
Registered Auditors
Cape Town
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
INDEX

These reports and statements comprise the annual financial statements presented for audit:
Index

Page(s)

Report of the Auditor-General

3

Council's Responsibilities and Approval

5

Statement of Financial Position

6

Statement of Financial Performance

7

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

8

Cash Flow Statement

9

Accounting Policies

10 - 38

Notes to the Financial Statements

39 - 74

ABBREVIATIONS
AG
AGSA
ASB
DHET
GRAP
SARS
VAT
CET Act
NSF
HRBP
ADPF

Auditor General
Auditor General of South Africa
Accounting Standards Board
Department of Higher Education and Training
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
South African Revenue Services
Value Added Tax
CET Act No.16 of 2006, as amended
National Skills Fund
DHET SAICA HR Support Project Human Resources Business Partner
Acting Deputy Principal Finance
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018
Note

2018
R

2017
R

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including transfers
Inventories

135 758 967

69 275 585

3
4
5
6

95 129 926
26 986 330
11 059 919
2 582 792

23 961 705
15 944 248
24 532 790
4 836 842

253 719 888

262 976 188

7

253 719 888

262 976 188

389 478 854

332 251 773

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Provisions
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Other financial liabilities

9
10
11
12

Total liabilities

52 789 498

20 380 422

22 552 107
138 337
29 966 668
132 386

18 081 895
117 935
2 135 986
44 606

52 789 498

20 380 422

Net assets

336 689 351

311 871 351

Accumulated surplus

336 689 351

311 871 351

Total net assets and liabilities

389 478 854

332 251 773
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 December 2018
Note
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Tuition and related fees
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Rental of facilities and equipment
Investment income
Other income

13
14
15
16
17

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Government grants and subsidies
Services-In-Kind
Public contributions and donations

18
18
19

Total revenue

2018
R

2017
R

123 161 139

97 577 572

103 528 925
171 790
45 420
3 408 658
16 006 346

95 442 771
136 123
36 040
1 709 209
253 429

146 796 394

139 064 885

50 249 546
95 613 653
933 195

53 337 612
85 543 610
183 663

269 957 533

236 642 457

(122 265 880)
(16 029 664)
(12 914 736)
(8 982 105)
(8 236 728)
(2 588 171)
(24 625 698)
(2 582 179)
(3 310 944)
(1 832 855)
(5 559 704)
(2 399 094)
(1 714 804)
(7 512 326)
(1 366 216)
(3 024 869)
(1 810 175)
(2 143 514)
(13 328)
(10 345 526)

(106 031 716)
(46 087 661)
(12 469 105)
(5 863 201)
(6 701 331)
(1 827 423)
(18 607 799)
(2 347 946)
(2 361 799)
(1 599 925)
(1 580 931)
(2 393 227)
(1 589 310)
(9 274 051)
(1 066 224)
(2 630 228)
(1 773 885)
(1 993 477)
(9 844)
(7 361 469)

(239 258 516)

(233 570 552)

(5 880 916)

(1 193 294)

(5 880 916)

(308 156)
(885 138)

24 818 101

1 878 612

Expenses
Employee related costs and DHET management fee
Contributions to provision
Depreciation and amortisation
Books and learning materials
Students residence meals
Travel, accommodation and entertainment
Transport claims
Security
Contracted services
Consulting fees
Consumables
External audit fees
Licence fees - computers & software
Municipal services
Marketing
Rental of buildings
Telephone, postage, internet, network and communication costs
Printing and stationery
Finance costs
General expenses

20
21
22
23

25

26
27

Total expenses
Other gains / losses
Gain/(Loss) on sale of assets
Impairment (Loss)/Reversal of impairment loss on assets

28
29

Surplus for the year
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 31 December 2018

Note

40

Accumulated Surplus Total: Net Assets
Balance at 01 January 2017 as previously reported
Correction of errors

R
297 655 119
12 337 519

R
297 655 119
12 337 519

Balance at 01 January 2017 as restated
Surplus for the year
As previously reported
Correction of errors
Balance at 01 January 2018 as restated
Surplus for the year
Balance at 31 December 2018

309 992 638
1 878 612
(1 084 264)
2 962 876
311 871 250
24 818 101
336 689 351

309 992 638
1 878 612
(1 084 264)
2 962 876
311 871 250
24 818 101
336 689 351
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2018
Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Tuition and related fees
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest
Government grants and subsidies
Other Receipts
Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs
Net cash flows from operating activities

30

2018
R

2017
R

187 666 443
77 124 184
171 790
45 420
3 439 257
91 577 049
15 308 743

103 606 238
54 699 380
136 123
36 040
1 718 159
46 575 176
441 360

(107 891 969)
(26 631 825)
(81 246 815)
(13 328)

(85 792 886)
(20 397 736)
(65 385 306)
(9 844)

79 774 474

17 813 352

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(8 606 253)

(14 599 030)

Net cash flows from investing activities

(8 606 253)

(14 599 030)

71 168 221
23 961 705
95 129 926

3 214 321
20 747 384
23 961 705

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

3
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
1,00 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1,01 Presentation of Financial Statements and Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in the manner prescribed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training in
terms of the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended.
These financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance
with the historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.
In the absence of an approved and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions,
events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with
Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or
permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
A summary of the significant accounting policies are disclosed below.
The presentation and classification and these accounting policies are consistent with the previous year, except
for the changes set out in note 31 & 38.
1,02 Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the
College.
1,03 Going concern assumption
Management and council have made the assessment that the entity is a going concern and the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
1,04 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The use of judgement, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing financial statements.
These judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in the financial statements.
Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the relevant asset or liability in future periods.
Judgements
In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that
may have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Programme funding
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
In terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms for TVET Colleges, the Colleges are funded (Programme
Funding) based on their Full Time Equivalent (FTE) student numbers. Therefore, in terms of the CET Act and
the Funding Norms, a College receives Programme Funding to enrol and train a certain number of students for
the year and that Programme Funding accrues to the College in terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms
and the accrual is separate and independent from how the funds are distributed to the College. The full
amount of allocated Programme Funding therefore has to be paid to the College by DHET, irrespective of how
it is paid. DHET settles its liability for Programme Funding towards the College in part by paying the
employment cost of the College employees employed by DHET, via Persal. The remaining liability towards the
College is settled in cash.
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
The Funding norms that is currently applicable to TVET Colleges was Gazetted on 15 May 2015 and paragraph
117 contains provisions which may cause conditions as defined in GRAP 23 to exist under certain
circumstances. These conditions would be applicable to the portion of the Programme Funding which is
withheld to pay for employee cost of Persal employees deployed at the College. However, DHET has indicated
that the intention of the Funding Norms is not to impose conditions which may be introduced by paragraph
117 and that the intention is that a College’s Programme Funding accrues to it in total. Therefore, any
difference between the amount withheld for paying Persal salaries and the amount that is eventually used to
pay for Persal salaries, is automatically payable to Colleges. DHET has aligned its systems to facilitate the
payment of these amounts to Colleges.
Paragraph 103 of the Funding Norms provides for a claw back to be implemented if a College’s enrolment
figures were less than what was planned for and funded in the previous year. The effect of this paragraph is
that it introduces a condition as defined in GRAP 23, which is that a portion of the Programme Funding will
have to be repaid if a College enrols less than 97% of the planned and funded enrolment target for the year.
However, DHET has indicated that they do not currently have sufficient confidence in the correctness of the
enrolment figures to be able to implement this claw back and that the Programme Funding Grant is therefore
an unconditional grant at the moment.
The substance over form nature of the Programme Funding for a College is therefore that it accrues to the
College, in full and without any conditions, in the financial year of the College during which the enrolment and
training of students occur. The date on which it accrues is 1 January of the relevant year, or the date on which
the final grant amount is communicated to the College, whichever is later. The full Programme Funding
allocation to the College is therefore recognised as revenue in the College's financial year.
The transactions and amounts are disclosed in Note 18.
DHET management fee
The College's staff consists of two groups:
i) Employees and management staff appointed on Persal
ii) Employees appointed on the College payroll
The management and other staff who are stationed at a College (College’s staff) and are paid through Persal
are employed by DHET on DHET’s Persal payroll. Therefore in terms of labour legislation they are DHET
employees and not College employees. However, these employees are stationed permanently and exclusively
at the College and are also subject to the governance and management oversight of the Council of the College
and the intention is for the College to operate with relative autonomy. The employees are therefore
substantively under the operational control of the College, with DHET performing and supporting certain HR
related functions, e.g. administering the payroll and appointment, performance management, termination
and disciplinary processes.
In terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms for TVET Colleges, the Colleges are funded (Programme
Funding) based on their Full Time Equivalent (FTE) student numbers. Therefore, in terms of the CET Act and
the Funding Norms, a College receives Programme Funding to enrol and train a certain number of students for
the year and that Programme Funding accrues to the College in terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms
and the accrual is separate and independent from how the funds are distributed to the College. The full
amount of allocated Programme Funding therefore has to be paid to the College by DHET, irrespective of how
it is paid. DHET settles its liability for Programme Funding towards the College in part by paying the
employment cost of the College employees employed by DHET, via Persal. The remaining liability towards the
College is settled in cash.
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
What happens, in layman’s terms, is that DHET employs the College’s management and other staff for it,
performs certain HR related functions for the College and uses the College’s funds to pay the salaries of the
College staff in DHET’s employment.
There is therefore a College expense (outflow of College economic resources) which has to be accounted for
by a College and the questions that remain are how that expense should be classified and measured.
With respect to the classification, the nature of the expense is clearly related to employee cost, but is not
classified as employee cost, because the College is not the employer in terms of labour and related legislation.
The expense is therefore classified as a DHET management fee expense in the hands of a College. On the face
of the Statement of Financial Performance, it is aggregated with the College’s Employee cost expense and it is
disclosed separately in the notes.
With respect to the measurement of the expense, DHET settles the liability for Programme Funding towards
the College, by assuming an employee cost liability towards the College’s employees employed by DHET and
paid via Persal. The cost or value of the expense for the College is therefore the same as the amount by which
the liability that DHET owes to the College decreases as a result of DHET assuming the employee cost liability
towards the College employees. This is inclusive of all short and long term employee benefits, e.g. leave and
bonus accruals, capped leave and long service awards.
The transactions and amounts are disclosed in Note 20.
DHET SAICA TVET CFO and HR Support Projects
Both the DHET SAICA TVET HR and CFO Support Projects are funded by the National Skills Fund (NSF) and
managed by SAICA for DHET. SAICA appoints and manages the Project teams in accordance with the Project
Business Plans. In the HR Support Project, support is provided directly to DHET by the placement of Project
team members at DHET to fulfil certain functions and HR Business Partners (HRBPs) are also allocated to
Colleges, with each HRBP supporting more than one College. In the CFO Support Project, there is a Project
management team which assists DHET to coordinate the financial management in the sector. For the CFO
Support Project, SAICA has also seconded a team member to DHET and DHET has placed the Project Team
member as Acting DPF in the College.
SAICA supports DHET with these Projects on a cost recovery basis, as part of SAICA’s Nation Building initiative.
The services in kind received from these projects are judged to be significant to the operations and service
delivery objectives of the College. The fair value of the services are judged to be the cost to the NSF,
apportioned for the proportional time spent at the College by the SAICA Project team members.
The economic inflow arising from the service in kind being provided to the College is recognised as revenue
from services in kind. The nature of the expense relates to employee cost, but as the employees placed at the
College are not College employees, it is classified as management fees. On the face of the Statement of
Financial Performance, it is aggregated with the Employee related costs and DHET management fee and it is
disclosed separately in the notes.
The transactions and amounts are disclosed in Note 18 and 20.
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
Campuses or other property used and controlled, but not owned by the College
Certain campuses and other property are used by the College and are not registered in the name of the
College. The lack of legal ownership could affect whether or not the college has control over the campus.
Where, inter alia, control exists, the campus in question is recognised, measured and included in the financial
statements as either property, plant and equipment (campuses or other property) or investment property
(other property) in terms of the definition and recognition criteria of an asset as per the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements and the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment in
GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment or Investment Property in GRAP 16 Investment Property.
Classification of land and buildings as property, plant and equipment or investment property
Judgement is needed to determine whether a property qualifies as investment property. The College
developed the following criteria so that it can exercise that judgement consistently in accordance with the
definition of investment property:
Examples:
- The purpose for which the property is used i.e. if for education purposes then the property is not regarded as
an investment property.
- If the property is held for the purpose of generating rental income or to appreciate in value, then the
property is regarded as an investment property
- If other assets used in conjunction with the property to provide education, then the property is not regarded
as an investment property
- Land held for a currently undetermined future use is regarded as investment property.
The nature / type of properties classified as held for strategic purposes are as follows:
Classification of non-current, non-financial assets as cash-generating or non-cash-generating
Judgement is needed to determine whether an asset is cash-generating or non cash-generating. The College
developed the following criteria so that it can exercise that judgement consistently in accordance with the
definitions:
Example:
- The purpose for which the asset was acquired, i.e. if for education purposes at no consideration (no fees)
then the asset is regarded as non cash-generating asset. If to earn positive cash flows on a commercial basis,
then the asset is regarded as cash-generating.
Estimates
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, assumptions,
and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates are reviewed
on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed in the period of the review
and applied prospectively.
In the process of applying the College’s accounting policies the following estimates, were made:
Debt impairment
The College assesses its financial assets for impairment at the end of each financial year. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the College makes judgements as to
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
financial asset.
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The impairment is considered first for individually significant financial assets and then calculated on a portfolio
basis for individually insignificant financial assets, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with
defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to items in the portfolio and scaled to the
estimated loss emergence period.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of financial assets impaired.
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Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory
In making an allowance to write inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value, management has
made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is
included in the surplus or deficit. For inventory consumed in the supply of services for no or nominal charge,
management has made an estimate of the current replacement cost of such inventory and as appropriate
have reduced the carrying amount accordingly.
Refer to Note 6 for the carrying amounts of inventories affected.
Non-financial asset Impairment
In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on the
use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case of cash-generating
assets). For non-cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost,
restoration cost, or service units of the asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability
of information.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of non-financial assets impaired.
Provisions
Provisions are measured at the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the
obligation. In the process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required in future to
settle the provision management considers the weighted average probability of the potential outcomes of the
provisions raised. This measurement entails determining what the different potential outcomes are for a
provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. Management then assigns a
weighting factor to each of these outcomes based on the probability that the outcome will materialise in
future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and the factored outcomes are then
added together to arrive at the weighted average value of the provisions.
Refer to Note 10 for the provisions affected.
Useful lives and residual values of assets; depreciation and amortisation
The College's management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of all non-current, nonfinancial assets. These estimates are based on industry norms and then adjusted to be college specific.
Management determines at reporting date whether there are any indications that the College's expectations
of useful lives or residual values have changed from previous estimates. Where indications exist the expected
useful lives or residual values are revised accordingly.
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets respectively are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the
underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the
asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future use and
the college’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In
evaluating how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value management
considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets. Generally, depreciation
is accrued over the useful lives of assets on a straight-line basis.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of non-financial assets affected.
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Effective interest rate
The College uses an appropriate interest rate, taking into account guidance provided in GRAP, and applying
professional judgement to the specific circumstances, to discount future cash flows, to the present value of the
item being discounted.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of financial assets affected.
Fair value determination of properties (excluding heritage assets)
In determining the fair value of investment property (and / or property, plant and equipment ) donated or
acquired for no consideration, the College applies a valuation methodology to determine the fair value of the
properties based on any one of, or a combination of the following factors:
- The market related selling price of the property; or
- The market related rental that can be earned for the property; or
- The market related selling price of similar properties in the area; or
- The rentals currently or previously earned by the property.
Where the above information is not available or reliably determinable the College determines an
approximation of fair-value by estimating the Depreciated Replacement Cost of the asset.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of properties affected.
1,05 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets and work-inprogress assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for
administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period.
Recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and
- the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment including work-in-progress is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to
bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of
acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets,
or a combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the
cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.
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The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the College is obligated to incur
such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes
other than the production of inventories.
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Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the
item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are
included in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be
used in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment
and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of
property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are
derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment, except for work-in progress assets, are depreciated on the straight line basis
over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value. Refer below for the estimated useful lives:
Class
Useful Life Range in Years
Land
-Indefinite Life
Buildings
-50
Other Assets
Vehicles
-5 -14
Furniture and Fittings
-5 -14
Plant, Machinery and Equipment -5 -14
Office Equipment
-5 -14
Computer Equipment
-3 -14
Bulk Electricity Supply
-10 -50
Paving
-10 -100
Audiovisual
-5 -14
Kitchen equipment
-5 -14
At reporting date it is assessed whether there are any indications that the College's expectations of useful
lives or residual values have changed from previous estimates. Where indications exist the expected useful
lives or residual values are revised accordingly.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.
Derecognition
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in
surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the item.
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Work-in-progress is derecognised as work-in-progress assets and transferred to the relevant assets, usually
infrastructure assets, when the construction of these assets are complete and ready to be used.
Deemed cost
When the College acquired an asset prior the date of adopting the Standards of GRAP or in a transfer of
functions between entities under common control or in a merger where the transferor or combining entity did
not apply the Standards of GRAP on the transfer or merger date and when information about the historical
cost are not available, the acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the date the
college adopted the Standards of GRAP, or the transfer or merger date (the measurement date). Deemed cost
is determined as the fair value of an asset at the measurement date.
Biological assets that do not form part of an agricultural activity
Where a biological asset does not form part of an agricultural activity, the biological asset is classified as part
of property, plant and equipment and measured accordingly.
1,06 Intangible assets
Intangible assets include Computer software.
An asset is identifiable if it either:
- is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability,
regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or
- arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to
it as if it were in the form of a contract.
Recognition and measurement
An intangible asset is recognised when:
- it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the entity; and
- the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The College assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using
reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic
conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.
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Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of
acquisition is measured at its fair value as at that date.
For internally generated intangible assets, expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal
project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. An intangible asset arising from development (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
- it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
- there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
- there is an ability to use or sell it.
- it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
- there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the asset.
- the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service
potential. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining
carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not
recognised as intangible assets.
Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values.
Refer below for the estimated useful lives:
Class
Computer Software
Licenses

Useful Life Range in Years
-3
-3

Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised:
- on disposal; or
- when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is
recognised in surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.
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Deemed cost
When the College acquired an asset prior the date of adopting the Standards of GRAP or in a transfer of
functions between entities under common control or in a merger where the transferor or combining entity did
not apply the Standards of GRAP on the transfer or merger date and when information about the historical
cost are not available, the acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the date the
college adopted the Standards of GRAP, or the transfer or merger date (the measurement date). Deemed cost
is determined as the fair value of an asset at the measurement date.
1,07 Financial instruments
The College has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:
Class
Trade
and
other
Cash and cash equivalents

receivables

Category
Financial
asset
at
amortised
Financial asset at amortised cost

cost

The College has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:
Class
Trade and other payables

Category
Financial liability at cost

Initial recognition
The College recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The College measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs (for
financial instruments at amortised cost) that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
instrument.
The College first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial
recognition, the college analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each
component separately. The College accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is:
- a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or
- non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The College measures all financial instruments after initial recognition as follows:
- Financial instruments at fair value: Fair-value at reporting date
- Financial instruments at amortised cost: Amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment losses.
- Financial instruments at cost. Cost, less any impairment losses.
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Fair value measurement considerations
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is
not active, the entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation
technique is to establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s
length exchange motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in
actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum
use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that
market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies
for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for
validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without
modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.
The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount
payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.
Reclassification
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
- combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
- an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.
Where the College cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated
from a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined
instrument at fair value. This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair
value.
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value,
the College reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value
is no longer available becomes the cost.
If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was
previously not available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the
College reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair
value is recognised in surplus or deficit.
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in
surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the
amortisation process.
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Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets
The College assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
directly OR through the use of an allowance account (debt impairment provision). The amount of the loss is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or
deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual
interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. The entity derecognises a financial asset
only when:
- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
- the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial;
- the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in
its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to
impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and
those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and
obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received
and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.
If the College transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains
the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for
that servicing contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the College adequately for
performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee
to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is
recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying
amount of the larger financial asset.
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If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the college
obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the college
recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in
its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts,
on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be
recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the College has retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the College continue to recognise the transferred asset in its
entirety and recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the college
recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither
the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.
Financial liabilities
The College removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position
when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or
waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms
is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for
as having extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by
another college by way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of
GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue
or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Distributions to holders of residual interests are debited by the entity directly to net assets, net of any related
income tax benefit [where applicable]. Transaction costs incurred on residual interests is accounted for as a
deduction from net assets, net of any related income tax benefit [where applicable].
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A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the College currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the College does not
offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1,08 Statutory receivables
Funding receivable from DHET arise from non-contracted arrangements as the basis for DHET funding is found
in the Continuing Education and Training Act (CET Act) and the The National Norms and Standards for Funding
Technical and Vocational Education and Training Colleges. Cash receivable from DHET as part of programme
funding is regarded as a "statutory receivable".
The statutory receivable is initially measured at the transaction amount and subsequently measured using the
cost-method, which changes the initial measurement to reflect any impairment or amounts derecognised. An
explanation on when the DHET programme funding and any related receivables or payables are recorded is
provided in note 1.04 and 1.17.
The statutory receivable is included in Other receivables from non-exchange transactions. Refer to note 5.
1,09 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and building elements, the College assesses the classification of each
element separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal
to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the rate implicit in
the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial
performance.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an
operating lease asset or liability.
1,10 Inventories
Inventories are assets:
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process;
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services;
- held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or
- in the process of production for sale or distribution.
Recognition and measurement
Inventories are recognised as an asset if:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and
- the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange
transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories held for commercial purposes are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for:
- distribution through a non-exchange transaction; or
- consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and
segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
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The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out cost formula. The same cost formula is used for
all inventories having a similar nature and use to the College.
Recognition as an expense
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised
when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
1,11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
i) cash;
ii) cash in current bank accounts;
iii) cash in interest bearing bank accounts or money market accounts where the funds are available
immediately.
1,12 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets managed by the College with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated
college, it generates a commercial return.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through
depreciation (amortisation).
Identification
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.
The College assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the College also tests a cash-generating
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for
impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is
performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current
reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting
period.
Value in use
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
When estimating the value in use of an asset, the College estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be
derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the College applies the
appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.
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Basis for estimates of future cash flows
In measuring value in use the entity:
- base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best
estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater
weight is given to external evidence;
- base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes any
estimated future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or from improving or
enhancing the asset's performance. Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum period
of five years, unless a longer period can be justified; and
- estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by
extrapolating the projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the
- products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used, unless a higher rate can be justified.
Composition of estimates of future cash flows
Estimates of future cash flows include:
- projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset;
- projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use
of the asset (including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis, to the asset; and
- net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.
Estimates of future cash flows exclude:
- cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
- income tax receipts or payments.
The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life
is the amount that the entity expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction
between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal.
Discount rate
The discount rate is a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented
by the current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted.
Recognition and measurement (individual asset)
If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cashgenerating asset to which it relates, the College recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement
in the Standard of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its
residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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Cash-generating units
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the College determines
the recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating
unit).
If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets
is identified as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows
generated by any asset or cash- generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the entity use
management's best estimate of future price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in
estimating:
- the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
- the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that
are affected by the internal transfer pricing.
Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets,
unless a change is justified.
The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is determined.
An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cashgenerating assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These
reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on individual assets.
In allocating an impairment loss, the College does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the
highest of:
- its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
- its value in use (if determinable); and
- zero
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other cash-generating assets of the unit.
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount
of that non- cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.
Reversal of impairment loss
The College assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised
in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the College estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal
of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
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A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
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After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount,
less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the
unit pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as
reversals of impairment losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a
non-cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit.
In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not
increased above the lower of:
- its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
- the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
Redesignation
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cashgenerating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation
is appropriate.
1,13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated
entity, it generates a commercial return.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. Refer to note 1.05 for criteria
developed to distinguish non cash-generating assets from cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through
depreciation (amortisation).
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a
revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
The College assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable service amount of the
asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the College also tests a non-cash-generating
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for
use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This
impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised
during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the
current reporting period.
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Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining
service potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the
following approach:
Depreciated replacement cost approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the
depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s
gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be
replaced either through reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross
service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of
the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the
already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.
The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale
is that the College would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or
reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are
unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater
capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the asset provides. The determination of
the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis thus reflects the service potential
required of the asset.
Restoration cost approach
Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The present
value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration
cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before
impairment. The latter cost is determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset,
whichever is lower.
Service units approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of
the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service
units expected from the asset in its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the remaining service
potential of the asset before impairment is determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost
of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cashgenerating asset to which it relates, the College recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement
in the Standards of GRAP.
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After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss
The College assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised
in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The
increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal
of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Redesignation
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cashgenerating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation
is appropriate.
1,14 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by
employees.
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
- an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
- an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
When an employee has rendered service to the College during a reporting period, the College recognises the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
- as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds
the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the College recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to
the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and
- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an
asset.
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The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services
that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The
College measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the
College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The College recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the
College has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the College has no realistic
alternative but to make the payments.
Termination benefits
The College recognises termination benefits as a liability and an expense when the college is demonstrably
committed to either:
i) terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or
ii) provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
The College is demonstrably committed to a termination when the college has a detailed formal plan for the
termination and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includes [as a minimum]:
i) the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;
ii) the termination benefits for each job classification or function; and
iii) the time at which the plan will be implemented.
Implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of time to complete implementation is such that
material changes to the plan are not likely.
Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using
an appropriate discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of money. The
currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with
the currency and estimated term of the benefit.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits
shall be based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.
DHET management fee
The remuneration of management and other personnel appointed by DHET on Persal and paid through Persal
using the College's funds is measured at the cost of the remuneration to DHET inclusive of leave, bonus and
other employee related accruals and/or provisions, as and when incurred by DHET. The related expense is
recognised as a DHET management fee expense as per note 20.
DHET SAICA HR and CFO Support Project management fee
The cost of the management fee expense arising out of the service in kind revenue from the DHET SAICA HR
and CFO Support project members placed at the College is measured at the cost of the remuneration of the
Project members, for the proportion of time spent at the College to the total time spent on the Project, by
those team members. The cost of remuneration is measured inclusive of leave, bonus and other employee
related accruals and/or provisions, as and when incurred by the NSF. The related expense is recognised as a
management fee expense as per note 20.
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1,15 Provisions and contingencies
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity.
A contingent liability is:
- a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirme d only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or
- a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Provisions are recognised when:
- the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required
to settle the obligation; and
- a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the
College settles the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are
reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage
of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating deficits.
If the College has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.
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A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when the College has a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and
- has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.
A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those
that are both:
- necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
- not associated with the ongoing activities of the College.
No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the College is committed to
the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in College combinations that are recognised
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
- the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
- the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in notes 34.
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires
judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
- financial difficulty of the debtor;
- defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
- breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and
the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
- a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that
impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.
Where a fee is received by the College for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the College considers that an outflow of economic
resources is probable, the College recognises the obligation at the higher of:
- the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and
- the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
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1,16 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those
inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the college receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished,
and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services or use of assets) to
the other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and
volume rebates.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
- the College has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
- the College retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
College; and
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are
satisfied:
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
College;
- the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
- the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is
recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other
method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any
other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date.
Interest, royalties, dividends and tuition fees
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar
distributions is recognised when:
- It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity, and
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- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
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Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the College’s right to receive
payment has been established.
Tuition fees are recognised over the period of instruction.
1,17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
When the College receives an asset or a service as part of a non-exchange transaction and the definition and
recognition criteria of an asset is met, the College recognises the asset and initially measures it at its fair value
as at the date of acquisition.
When there are conditions on transferred assets or services received by the College which result therein that
the college has a present obligation on initial recognition, which meets the definition and recognition criteria
of a liability, the College recognises a corresponding liability, initially measured as the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue,
except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
As the College satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a
non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised
and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised
by the College.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the College recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also
required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase
in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because a condition is
satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
Programme funding
The full programme funding allocated to the College in terms of the CET Act, the Funding Norms and the final
grant letter received from the department is recognised in full in the College's financial year during which the
enrolment and training of students, to which the grant pertains, are performed by the College. It is measured
at the total amount allocated to the College by DHET, inclusive of both the part paid in cash and the part paid
via Persal as per note 18.
Transfers
Apart from Services in kind, which are only recognised as indicated below, the College recognises an asset in
respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for
recognition as an asset.
The College recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of
an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
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Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
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Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities
The College recognise revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the
definition of a liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability, provided that the debt forgiveness
does not satisfy the definition of a contribution from owners.
Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of debt forgiven.
Services in-kind
The College recognises services in-kind that are significant to its operations and/or service delivery objectives
as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service
potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. If the services in-kind
are not significant to the College’s operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not satisfy the
criteria for recognition, the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting period is
disclosed.
When the criteria for recognition are satisfied, services in-kind are measured on initial recognition at their fair
value as at the date of acquisition.
The College recognised the services in kind received through the SAICA HR and CFO Support Projects when the
College receives the services in kind. The services in kind received through these projects are measured at the
direct cost incurred by the National Skills Fund on the remuneration of the resources placed at the College, for
the proportion of time spent at the College to total time spent on the Project by the Project team members
placed at the College. The transactions are disclosed in note 18.
Fines
Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria
for recognition as an asset.
Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the entity.
Where the entity collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting entity.
Bequests
Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that
the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity, and the fair value of the assets can be
measured reliably.
Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind
Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the
future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be
measured reliably.
1,18 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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1,19 Comparative figures
When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended due to better
presentation and/or better understandability and/or comparability and/or due to the implementation of a
new or amended standard, prior period comparative amounts are reclassified. Where accounting errors have
been identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior
year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the
current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly.
1,20 Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. An asset arising from development is
recognised when:
- it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
- there is an intention to complete and use or sell it,
- there is an ability to use or sell it,
- it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential,
- there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the asset, and
- the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
1,21 Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint
control. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form.
Significant influence may be exercised in several ways, usually by representation on the governing body but
also, for example, by participation in the policy-making process, material transactions between entities within
an economic entity, interchange of managerial personnel or dependence on technical information.
Significant influence may be gained by an ownership interest, statute or agreement or otherwise. With regard
to an ownership interest, significant influence is presumed in accordance with the definition contained in the
Standard of GRAP on Investments in Associates.
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
College, including those charged with the governance of the college in accordance with legislation, in
instances where they are required to perform such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the College.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are
disclosed.
1,22 Commitments
The College discloses commitments relating to each class of capital assets ( PPE, Investment properties,
Intangible assets, Biological assets and Heritage assets) recognized in the financial statements as well as
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:
- Not later than one year,
- Later than one year and not later than five years, and
- Later than five years.
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1,23 Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can
be identified:
- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the
reporting date); and
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the
reporting date).
Reporting date means the date of the last day of the reporting period to which the financial statements relate.
The reporting date of the College is 31 December 2018.
The College adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the
reporting date. The College does not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect nonadjusting events after the reporting date.
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2018

2017

R

R

Note

2 Standards, amendments to Standards, Directives and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following Standards of GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been approved by the Accounting Standards Board, but will only become
effective in future periods or have not been given an effective date by the Minister of Finance. The College has not early-adopted any of these new
Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in the development of accounting policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as
read with Directive 5:
Title of the standard and nature of impending changes in accounting policy and expected
impact

Effective date (Periods
starting on or after)

GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures: Currently use it as guidance for accounting policies,
therefore no impact expected on initial adoption.
GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor: None
GRAP108 Statutory Receivables: No changes to recognition and measurement are expected,
but additional disclosures and separate classification in the notes will be done on adoption.

Not yet set

Financial year in which
the College plans to
apply the Standard
initially
Not yet set

Not yet set
Not yet set

Not yet set
Not yet set

GRAP109 Accounting by Principals and Agents: No changes to recognition and measurement
are expected, but additional disclosures in the notes will be done on adoption.

Not yet set

Not yet set

GRAP 110 Living and Non-living Resources: None
Not yet set
IGRAP 17 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements Where Not yet set
a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset: None

Not yet set
Not yet set

Directive 12 The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public Entities: None

31 December 2019

Sunday, 01 April 2018

3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Call deposits
Call investments

995
38 500 835
39 900
56 588 196
95 129 926

11 446 319
135 760
12 379 626
23 961 705

Central
Office
Control
Account
Absa Malmesbury Account Number : 4052300937
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

10 579 049
11 125 068
10 579 049
11 125 068

4 034 244
10 579 049
4 034 244
10 579 049

College
Bursary
Scheme
Account
Absa Malmesbury Account Number : 9134249468
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

15 031
15 948
15 031
15 948

14 191
15 031
14 191
15 031

WCC
Fundraising
Absa Malmesbury Account Number : 4065016240
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

87 322
440 397
87 322
440 397

31 677
87 322
31 677
87 322

The College has the following bank accounts:
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Note

2018

2017

R

R

weeeos

Absa Malmesbury Account Number: 4064441995

36 580
7 413 273

Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

27 635
36 580

36580

27 635

7 413273

36 580

Cash book balance at end of year

42 532
45 307

211 788
42 532

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

42 532

211 788

Bank statement balance at end of year

45 307

42 532

526152

494 360

Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

wee Operational Reserve

Absa Malmesbury Account Number: 4076253954

Cash book balance at beginning of year

ABSA
Debt Service Account Number: 9239525050
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

8222

526152

526 152

494 360

8222

526152

159 652
1943 782

3112 380
159 652

National Skills Fund Account
ABSA Malmesbury Account Number: 4079569130
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

159 652

3 112 380

1943 782

159 652

Money Market Account
Absa Malmesbury Account Number: 9113379844
Cash book balance at beginning of year

37187

34 586

Cash book balance at end of year

39900

37187

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

37187

34 586

Bank statement balance at end of year

39 900

37187

98 572

373 381

Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

wee INFRASTRUCTURE RESERVES

Absa Malmesbury Account Number: 9290094850
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

17 508 839

98 572

98572

373 381

17 508 839

98 572

wee Nedbank Investment
Nedbank Malmesbury Account Number: 03/7285030031/000015
and 03/7285030031/000014
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

3 384 402

6 341092

48 503 767

3 384 402

3 384 402

6 341092

48 503 767

3 384 402
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2018
R

Note
WCC
Investec
Investment
Investec Account Number : 50011209325
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

2017
R

8 995 224
8 084 429
8 995 224
8 084 429

Cash on hand

6 071 880
8 995 224
6 071 880
8 995 224

995

Total cash and cash equivalents

-

95 129 926

23 961 704

31 933 987

2 295 226

29 966 669

2 135 986

1 967 318

159 240

Cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral
No cash and cash equivalents have been pledged as collateral.
Cash and cash equivalent balances that are not available for use by
the College
Cash on hand relating to conditional grants where the grant
conditions have not been met
National Government
Details
Deliverables have to be met in terms of the agreement with NSF before monies are avalable for use.
4 Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Gross Balances
31 December 2018

R

R

Provision for
impairment of debts

Net Balance
R

Student debtors
Stipends
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepayments
Deposits
Sundry debtors

31 866 935
8 301 889
4 374 461
10 180 631
252 406
29 400
774 258

(22 400 643)
(4 386 311)
(1 740 386)
(29 400)
(236 910)

9 466 292
3 915 578
4 374 461
8 440 245
252 406
537 348

Total trade and other receivables

55 779 980

(28 793 650)

26 986 330

Gross Balances
31 December 2017

R

R

Provision for
impairment of debts

Net Balance
R

Student debtors
Stipends
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepayments
Accrued Interest
Deposits
Sundry debtors

51 650 572
6 746 939
2 122 242
1 123 096
141 895
30 599
29 400
187 166

(40 975 618)
(4 115 006)
(951 463)
(29 400)
(16 173)

10 674 954
2 631 933
2 122 242
171 633
141 895
30 599
170 993

Total trade and other receivables

62 031 909

(46 087 660)

15 944 248

31 866 936
31 866 936

200
112 988
51 537 384
51 650 572

Student debtors: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total
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Note

2018
R

2017
R

Stipends: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total

2 129 183
900 910
319 800
4 951 768
8 301 661

523 284
365 276
651 991
5 206 388
6 746 939

Provincial Government: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total

4 334 616
39 845
4 374 461

2 065 864
56 378
2 122 242

(193)
8 096 132
2 084 691
10 180 631

140 914
982 182
1 123 096

252 406
252 406

141 895
141 895

National Government: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total
Prepayments: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total
Accrued Interest: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total

-

Deposits: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total
Sundry debtors: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days
Total
Reconciliation of the provision for debt impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Reversal of prior year provision
Contributions to provision
Bad debts written off against provision
Balance at end of year
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
Less than 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 + days

30 599
30 599

29 400
29 400

29 400
29 400

354 911
36 144
17 352
365 851
774 258

(15 643)
4 145
8 724
189 940
187 166

46 087 660
16 029 664
(33 323 674)
28 793 650

16 869 216
(16 869 216)
46 087 660
46 087 660

22 399 308
22 399 308

2 065 864
13 705 891
15 771 755
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Note

2018
R

2017
R

Carrying amount of trade and other receivables past due but not
impaired whose terms have been renegotiated.
Trade and other receivables impaired
The amount of the provision was R28 793 650 (2017: R46 087 660)
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
1 to 3 months past due
3 to 6 months past due
6 to 9 months past due
More than 9 months past due

28 793 650
28 793 650

46 087 660
46 087 660

11 059 919
11 059 919

24 532 790
24 532 790

11 059 919
11 059 919

15 153 751
9 379 039
24 532 790

Credit quality of trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions
The credit quality of amounts not provided for or impaired is rated as
good as it relates to other State departments.
The college has never experienced any default from these State
entities in the past.
Fair value of trade and other receivables
The carrying values of trade and other receivables do not
approximate their fair values. The approach used to determine the
carrying value is as follows:
i. Means Tested Students- Balances are reviewed against the
available bursary funds.
ii. Sundry Debtors- Balances are reviewed for movement over time
and are considred for impairment once no payment has been
received in the previous twelve months.
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions pledged as
security
No trade and other receivables have been pledged as security,
neither is any collateral held.
5 Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including transfers
Statutory receivable: Government grants and subsidies (Refer also
note 18)
Total other debtors
Terms and conditions of other receivables
Statutory receivable: Government grants and subsidies
No terms and conditions attached to these government grants.
Statutory receivable: Government grants and subsidies: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 + Days

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 + days

-

9 379 039
9 379 039
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Note

2018
R

2017
R

Credit quality of other receivables from non-exchange transactions
The credit quality of amounts not provided for or impaired is rated as
good as it relates to other State departments.
The college has never experienced any default from these State
entities in the past.
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions pledged as
security
None of the other receivables from non-exchange transactions,
including taxes and transfers, has been pledged as security and
neither is any collateral held.
6 Inventories
Carrying value of inventory
Textbooks
Consumables

2 582 792
1 485 050
1 097 742

4 836 842
1 957 611
2 879 231

Inventory carried at current replacement cost
The following classes of inventory are carried at current replacement
cost:
Textbooks
Consumables
Total

1 485 050
1 097 742
2 582 792

1 957 611
2 879 231
4 836 842

Amounts recognised as an expense
The following amounts, related to inventory, were recognised in the
statement of financial performance during the year:
Cost of inventory consumed in the ordinary course of business and
recognised in the consumables expense line item during the year

18 088 441

16 287 755

Total amount of Inventories recognised in the statement of
financial performance during the year

18 088 441

16 287 755

Inventory pledged as security
No inventories were pledged as security.
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Land
Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Bulk Electricity Supply
Paving
Audiovisual
Kitchen equipment
Total

R
23 046 579
230 605 261
6 375 491
12 458 069
20 188 817
3 587 096
14 593 729
1 523 792
623 350
2 644 767
2 786 554
318 433 505

Cost

R
22 725 197
214 653 794
1 810 973
4 986 668
6 350 387
1 535 701
6 639 326
1 371 417
578 945
600 551
1 723 229
262 976 188

Carrying Value
Opening Balance

Reconciliation of Property Plant and Equipment - 2018

Land
Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office
Equipment
Computer Equipment
Bulk Electricity Supply
Paving
Audiovisual
Kitchen equipment
Total

7 Property, plant and equipment

321 381
1 819 777
1 232 835
1 926 088
1 317 216
458 130
734 966
1 595 440
133 614
9 539 448

R

Additions

2018
Accumulated
Depreciation and
Impairment
R
(23 763 581)
(4 203 783)
(7 319 026)
(15 389 940)
(2 063 938)
(9 456 334)
(213 322)
(65 183)
(715 139)
(1 523 371)
(64 713 617)

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Acquisitions
through entity
combinations
R
-

R
23 046 579
206 841 680
2 171 708
5 139 043
4 798 877
1 523 158
5 137 395
1 310 470
558 167
1 929 628
1 263 183
253 719 888

Carrying Value

Note

-
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R

Disposals

R

2018

(4 413 181)
(872 100)
(1 510 163)
(2 632 374)
(415 962)
(2 196 971)
(60 947)
(20 777)
(208 298)
(583 963)
(12 914 736)

R

Depreciation

R
22 725 197
228 785 483
5 142 656
10 531 982
18 871 600
3 128 965
13 858 763
1 523 792
623 350
1 049 327
2 652 940
308 894 055

Cost

R

2017

R

Transfers

-

2017
Accumulated
Depreciation and
Impairment
R
(14 131 689)
(3 331 683)
(5 545 314)
(12 521 213)
(1 593 264)
(7 219 437)
(152 375)
(44 405)
(448 776)
(929 711)
(45 917 867)

(5 870 506)
(283 920)
(238 832)
(61 403)
(84 087)
(58 065)
(10 320)
(6 607 133)

R

Impairment
loss

R
22 725 197
214 653 794
1 810 973
4 986 668
6 350 387
1 535 701
6 639 326
1 371 417
578 945
600 551
1 723 229
262 976 188

Carrying Value

R
651 797
20 284
2 478
6 690
44 347
622
726 218

Impairment
reversal

R
-

Other movements

R
23 046 579
206 841 680
2 171 708
5 139 043
4 798 877
1 523 158
5 137 395
1 310 470
558 167
1 929 628
1 263 183
253 719 888
-

Carrying Value
Closing Balance
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R
22 725 197
210 318 333
2 448 457
5 894 927
9 172 529
1 617 941
5 786 405
1 432 364
599 722
842 405
1 379 155
262 217 435
4 163
916 663
14 782 692

8 937 877
163 000
728 019
576 523
379 046
3 077 402
-

R

Additions

Acquisitions
through entity
combinations
R
-

Note

(33 939)
(16 956)
(32 660)
(22 348)
(100 547)
(83 396)
(18 309)
(308 155)

R

Disposals

R

2018

(4 240 579)
(697 055)
(1 437 188)
(3 063 149)
(369 900)
(1 898 970)
(60 947)
(20 777)
(144 132)
(536 107)
(12 468 805)

R

Depreciation

R

2017

Buildings
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Computer Equipment
Kitchen equipment
17 496 359

Opening Balance
R
15 656 303
22 919
182 000
741 470
893 667
1 252 281

2018
Additions
R
1 015 100
49 869
111 734
75 579
(14 656 360)

Transfers
R
(12 579 123)
(72 788)
(182 000)
(853 204)
(969 246)
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4 092 280

Closing Balance
R
4 092 280
-

Cumulative expenditure recognised in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment which is in the process of being constructed or developed:

Property, plant and equipment which is in the process of being constructed or developed [Prospective application for 2017]

Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
No assets were pledged as security.

Land
Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Bulk Electricity Supply
Paving
Audiovisual
Kitchen equipment
Total

Carrying Value
Opening Balance

Reconciliation of Property Plant and Equipment - 2017

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

-

8 039 170

Opening Balance
R
8 039 170
-

R

Transfers

9 457 189

2017
Additions
R
7 617 134
22 919
182 000
741 470
893 667

(18 489)
(18 171)
(908 885)

(69 490)
(196 738)
(308 436)
(72 030)
(225 531)

R

Impairment
loss

-

-

23 747

-

14 604
5 581
2 994
568

Transfers
R

R

Impairment
reversal

17 496 359

Closing Balance
R
15 656 303
22 919
182 000
741 470
893 667

(361 841)
(361 841)

R

Other movements

R
22 725 197
214 653 794
1 810 973
4 986 668
6 350 387
1 535 701
6 639 326
1 371 417
578 945
600 551
1 723 229
262 976 188
-

Carrying Value
Closing Balance
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Note
R

2018
R

2017

2017:
Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Computer Equipment
Audiovisual

Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Computer Equipment
Audiovisual

Reasons for delay

-

-

Employee related
costs and DHET
management fee

677 312
215 082
63 078
463 884
54 165
7 023
1 480 544

1 700 215
311 492
151 149
285 771
39 698
9 390
2 497 716

Contracted Services
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-

-

Depreciation and
amortisation

Glowing Sunset(The Contractor) failed to honor the contract as per the agreement

Repairs and maintenance incurred [Prospective application for 2017]
2018:

Buildings
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Kitchen equipment

361 075,62
839,70
19 352,80
91 076,28
1 790,62
474 135

1 167 566
14 552
31 116
462 249
4 090
1 679 573

Consumables

2018
Carrying Value
R
3 972 060
3 972 060

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment that is taking a significantly longer period of time to complete than expected, including reasons for any delays:

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
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1 038 387
215 921
82 431
554 960
54 165
8 814
1 954 679

Total Repairs and
maintenance
incurred
2 867 782
326 044
182 265
748 021
39 698
13 480
4 177 290

2017
Carrying Value
R
15 597 179
293 727
182 000
599 940
16 672 846
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Buildings for Citrusdal were build on Land belonging to the Western Cape Education
Department.

Buildings for Vredendal were build on Land (Erf 1539) belonging to the Western Cape
Education Department.

PPE for which the College does not have the legal title, but has control
Terms
and
conditions
No terms and conditions are attached to these properties.
The college controls these properties and has fencing around the property and uses it for
business purposes hence the property is an asset as the provincial department can not just
take away the properties.

Buildings
Vehicles
IT Equipment
Machinery and Equipment

Contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
By the date that the financial statements were authorised for issue the following
contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment existed:

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
Note
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4 077 647
2 593 849
1 498 500
8 169 996

R

2018

6 043 343
1 225 851
7 269 194

R

2017
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Restrictions to title and pledged as security
There are no restrictions to title or intangible
assets pledged as security.

Intangible Assets pledged as security
No intangible assets were pledged as security.

Computer Software
Total

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets - 2017

Computer Software
Total

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets - 2018

Computer Software
Total

8 Intangible assets

310 470
310 470

Carrying Value
Opening Balance
R
300
300

Carrying Value
Opening Balance
R
-

R

Cost

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

R

Disposals
R

Additions
R
-

Disposals

R

R

-

-

-

Carrying Value

Additions

-

2018
Accumulated
Amortisation and
Impairment
R
(310 470)
(310 470)

Note

R
-

-

R
310 470
310 470

Cost

2017
R

-

R
(300)
(300)

Amortisation

R

Amortisation
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Transfers

R

Transfers

2018
R

-

R
-

Impairment loss

R

Impairment loss

2017
Accumulated
Amortisation and
Impairment
R
(310 470)
(310 470)
-

-

R
-

Impairment reversal

R

Impairment reversal

R

Carrying Value

Internally
Developed
R

Internally
Developed
R

-

-

-

R
-

Other movements

R

Other movements

Carrying Value
Closing Balance
R
-

Carrying Value
Closing Balance
R
-

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
Note

2018
R

2017
R

3 006 604
9 795 927
6 783 231
2 966 345
22 552 107

3 151 612
9 432 247
5 059 282
438 754
18 081 895

9 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade creditors
Unallocated deposits
Stipends
National Government
Total creditors
Fair value of trade and other payables
All trade and other payables are stated at their
nominal value which equates to fair value.
10 Provisions
Reconciliation of Movement in Provision - 2018
Provision for
Leave Pay
R
117 935
20 402
138 337

Opening Balance
Provisions Raised
Closing Balance
Current portion provisions

Total
R
117 935
20 402
138 337

138 337

138 337

Reconciliation of Movement in Provision - 2017
Provision for
Leave Pay
R
27 565
90 370
117 935

Opening Balance
Provisions Raised
Closing Balance
Current portion provisions

Total
R
27 565
90 370
117 935

117 935

117 935

Provision for Leave Pay
Leave is calculated based on leave days outstanding at year-end and quantified in terms of total cost of employment per employee.
11 Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent Conditional Grants from other spheres of Government
Earmarked capital&Maintenance funding
Skills Levy Liability
Total Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts

29 966 668
29 966 668
29 966 668

2 135 986
2 029 739
106 247
2 135 986

Current portion of unspent conditional grants and receipts

29 966 668

2 135 986

2 135 986
29 019 310
(1 188 627)
29 966 669

5 103 632
171 976
(3 139 622)
2 135 986

Movements during the year
Balance at the beginning of year
Additions during the year
Income recognised during the year
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2018
R

Note

2017
R
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2018
R

Note

2017
R

12 Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other current financial liabilities

132 386
132 386

44 606
44 606

42 527 396
37 405 548
16 658 535
6 937 446
103 528 925

34 902 664
29 008 400
13 825 144
17 706 563
95 442 771

120 000
51 790
171 790

91 306
44 817
136 123

171 790

136 123

45 420
45 420

36 040
36 040

376 865
3 031 793
3 408 658

335 878
1 373 331
1 709 209

140
2 668 989
58 800
11 547 434
1 730 983
16 006 346

30
17 224
77 100
72 416
86 659
253 429

Transferred to
revenue

Closing Balance

R

R

Details of other financial liabilities
Refer to Note 32 for the terms and conditions.
13 Tuition and related fees
Tuition fees paid directly by students or private bursaries
Tuition fees - students
Residential and transportation fees
Skills, learnership and related fees
Partnership funding
Total tuition and related fees
14 Sale of goods and rendering of services
Sale of goods
Book sales
Metal scrap

Total sale of goods and rendering of services
15 Rental of facilities and equipment
Other rentals
Total rentals
16 Investment income
Interest - Bank
Interest - Financial assets
Total interest income
17 Other income
From exchange transactions
Sundry income
Insurance pay-outs
Tender fees
Bad debts recovered
Other income
18 Government grants and subsidies
Reconciliation of Movement - 2018

Opening
Balance

Current year
receipts /
(payments)
R

R
Unconditional
Programme funding: Grants paid via Persal
Programme funding: Grants paid cash
Conditional grants

Earmarked capital funding
Earmarked maintenance funding
Earmarked capital funding-NSF CoS
Earmarked operational funding-NSF CoS
Skills Levy Liability

(15 153 751)
(9 379 039)
(24 532 790)
Balance
unspent at
beginning of
year
2 029 739
106 247
2 135 986

15 153 751
47 403 988
62 557 739
Current year
receipts /
(payments)
17 906 943
2 600 000
7 909 367
603 000
29 019 310

Total for Government Grant Revenue

(11 059 919)
(38 001 000)
(49 060 919)

(11 059 919)
23 949
(11 035 970)

Conditions met
transferred to
revenue

Conditions still
to be met remain
liabilities

(398 104)
(55 861)
(25 415)
(709 247)
(1 188 627)

2 029 739
17 508 839
2 544 139
7 883 952
29 966 669

(50 249 546)

The Pesal Duplicate claim was paid back to the Department.
Reconciliation of Movement - 2017
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Note
Opening
Balance
Unconditional
Programme funding: Grants paid via Persal
Programme funding: Grants paid cash
Conditional grants

Earmarked capital funding
Persal Duplicate claim
Skills Levy Liability
Total Government Grant and Subsidies

Current year
receipts

2018
R

2017
R

Transferred to
revenue

Closing Balance

R
(12 665 000)
(8 073 000)
(20 738 000)

R
12 665 000
33 738 200
46 403 200

R
(15 153 751)
(35 044 239)
(50 197 990)

R
(15 153 751)
(9 379 039)
(24 532 790)

Balance
unspent at
beginning of
year
4 490 834
401 024
211 774
5 103 632

Current year
receipts /
(payments)

Conditions met
transferred to
revenue

(401 024)
573 000
171 976

(2 461 095)
(678 527)
(3 139 622)

Conditions still
to be met remain
liabilities
2 029 739
106 247
2 135 986

Total for Government Grant Revenue

(53 337 612)

Service in kind

(95 613 653)

(85 543 610)

933 195
933 195

183 663
183 663

26 250 732
201 936
136 960
62 599
26 652 227

20 170 327
113 768
109 670
94 341
20 488 106

1 928 764
259 042
291 044
263 400
323 193

1 960 621
297 937
650 518
5 272
204 671

69 889 272
12 670 284
3 539 079
6 441 081
8 494
95 613 653

63 338 917
10 928 157
3 253 081
4 904 436
85 543 610

122 265 880

106 031 716

Refer to Note 20 for services in kind relating to
employee related costs.
19 Public contributions and donations
Goods received in kind
Total public contributions and donations
20 Employee related costs and DHET management fee
Employee related costs
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Housing, travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Overtime payments

DHET/PDE management fee cost - Executive
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Housing, travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Leave payment
Performance and other bonuses
DHET/PDE management fee cost - non Executive
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Housing, travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Performance and other bonuses
Leave Payment

Total employee related costs and DHET management fee
In terms of the CET Act, employees are employees of the college and are accountable to the governance
structures of the college. Management are defined by the CET Act as the principal and deputy principals and
they are employed by DHET and have dual accountability towards the council and DHET respectively.
Other staff members within the 63% threshold also migrated to DHET as from 1 April 2015. Their salary
component is then also be classified as DHET Management Fee as from 1 April 2015.
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2018
R

Note

2017
R

Expenses paid via Persal from College programme funding:
Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Management remuneration

52 391 193
40 157 017
3 065 442
95 613 653

46 006 377
36 418 214
3 119 019
85 543 610

16 102 040
10 038 924
511 263
26 652 228

13 439 736
6 533 531
514 839
20 488 105

68 493 234
50 195 941
3 576 706
122 265 880

59 446 113
42 951 745
3 633 858
106 031 715

Expenses paid via College payroll:
Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Management remuneration

The employee cost for employees appointed by the College have in the past and will in future be met as
follows:
Government grants, Surpluses made on non-ministerial training programmes, DHET Persal refunds and
Tuition fees.
Total employee cost and DHET management fee:
Total funded
Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Management remuneration

In terms of the CET Act, employees that are employed by DHET and have a dual accountability towards the council and DHET resp ectively.
In-kind Benefits
The college does not have any In-Kind benefits, other
than the management fee indicated above.
21 Contributions to provision
Contributions to provision

16 029 664
16 029 664

46 087 660
46 087 661

12 914 736
12 914 736

12 468 805
300
12 469 105

8 982 105
8 982 105

5 863 201
5 863 201

22 Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

23 Books and learning materials
Text books (Report 191)
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Note

2018
R

2017
R

220 121
3 090 823
3 310 944

649 223
1 712 576
2 361 799

5 251
8 077
13 328

4 277
5 567
9 844

42 053
406 005
356 022
678 338
238 921
462
2 055
1 116 862
975 333
22 274
379 200
235 106
2 479
246 018
143 421
2 168 501
546 412
2 773 464
10 345 526

144 434
290 775
25 014
393 481
47 122
2 838
10 830
37 272
877 482
874 018
14 166
681 294
194 691
3 343
208 457
125 148
680 847
41 937
2 708 320
7 361 469

25 Contracted services
Training Project Partnership
Other contracted services

26 Finance costs
Other financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

27 General expenses
Advertising
Bank charges
Bursaries
Cleaning
Conferences and delegations
Council fees
Debt Collection Fees
Exam registration fees
Fuel and oil
Insurance
Licence fees - vehicles
Litigation settlements
Membership fees
Parking
Rental of office equipment
Other rentals
Training
Uniforms & overalls
Other expenses

28 Gain/(Loss) on sale of assets
Property, plant and equipment

-

(308 156)
(308 156)

29 Impairment (Loss)/Reversal of impairment loss on assets
Property, plant and equipment
During the physical verification that was performed
during the year assets that were verified as scrap and
those with a poor condition (25%) were impaired.

(5 880 916)

(885 138)

The recoverable amount was of the assets was based
on its carrying amount.
Because of the physical verification that was performed
during the year assets that were verified as scrap in the
previous year but were subsequently repaired and the
condition has improved resulted in the reversal of an
impairment.
Total Impairment (loss)/Reversal of Impairment Loss

(5 880 916)

(885 138)
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Note

2018
R

2017
R

30 Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Adjustment for:
Correction of error of provision for doubtful debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Public contributions and donations (non-cash)
Movement in provisions
Debt impairment
Gain/loss on sale of assets
Impairment loss/reversal of impairment loss on assets
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals
Employee Cost: DHET Management fee
Non exchange revenue: Service in kind
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables from non-exchange transactions
Increase/(decrease) in unspent conditional grants and receipts
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables from exchange transactions and
provisions
Net cash flows from operating activities

24 818 101

1 878 612

12 914 736
(933 195)
20 402
16 029 664
5 880 916
87 780
95 613 653
(95 613 653)
58 818 404

17 012 262
12 469 105
(183 663)
90 370
46 087 661
308 156
885 138
44 606
85 543 610
(85 543 610)
78 592 248

2 254 050
(27 071 746)
13 472 871
27 830 682

(3 551 062)
(52 534 514)
(3 794 790)
(2 967 646)

4 470 213
79 774 475

2 069 117
17 813 352

31 Correction of error
During the year under review, certain prior year amounts were corrected. The details of
such corrections are listed below:
31.1 Statement of Financial Performance

Tuition and related fees
Impairment of debtors
Depreciation and amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Transport claims
Contracted services
Consumables
Municipal services
General expenses
Impairment (Loss)/Reversal of impairment loss on assets
Surplus for the year

Previously
Reported

2018
Comparative

2017
Restated

95 038 567

95 442 771

404 204

(48 823 008)
(12 281 419)
(1 954 678)
(18 566 718)
(881 256)
(1 090 051)
(9 276 007)
(7 429 056)
(884 431)

(46 087 661)
(12 469 105)
(18 607 799)
(2 361 799)
(1 580 931)
(9 274 051)
(7 361 469)
(885 138)

2 735 347
(187 686)
1 954 678
(41 081)
(1 480 543)
(490 880)
1 956
67 587
(707)

(1 084 264)

1 878 612

2 962 876

31.1.1 Tuition and related fees
Previously stated
Correct allocation of project funding previously not allocated
Correction on tuition fees since the course was never offered

95 038 567
405 000
(796)

Rounding correction
Restated balance

95 442 771

31.1.2 Impairment of debtors
Previously stated
Correction to impairment of debtors other than tuition fees
Restated balance

(48 823 008)
2 735 347
(46 087 661)

31.1.3 Depreciation and amortisation
Previously stated
Increase in Depreciation due to newly verified assets being recorded
Restated balance

(12 281 419)
(187 920)
(12 469 339)

31.1.4 Reclassification of Repairs and Maintenance
Previously stated
Correction of asset additions for 2017
Reclassification since amount was disclosed by function instead of nature
Restated balance

Repairs and
maintenance
(1 954 678)

Contracted
services
(881 256)

1 954 678
-

(1 480 543)
(2 361 799)

31.1.5 Transport claims
Previously stated
Prior year transport claims only received late in 2018
Restated balance

Consumables
(1 090 051)
(16 745)
(474 135)
(1 580 931)

(18 566 718)
(41 081)
(18 607 799)

31.1.6 Municipal services
Previously stated
Correction on Water and Electricity bill received
Restated balance

(9 276 007)
1 956
(9 274 051)
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Note

2018
R

2017
R

31.1.7 General expenses
Previously stated
Correction to 2017 Fleet Card only identified in the current year
Restated balance

(7 429 056)
67 587
(7 361 469)

31.1.8 Impairment (Loss)/Reversal of impairment loss on assets
Previously stated
Correction to 2017 Impairments due to reclassification of assets
Restated balance

(884 431)
(706)
(885 137)

31.2 Statement of Financial Position

Previously
Reported

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Accumulated surplus

2018
Comparative

2017
Restated

8 993 968

15 944 248

6 950 280

262 414 039

262 976 188

562 149

25 869 962

18 081 895

(7 788 067)

297 655 119

311 871 351

14 216 232

31.2.1 Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Previously stated
Reversal of write off of 2016 debtors
Correction on tuition fees since the course was never offered
Correction to allocation of NSFAS due to late receipt of remittance
Correction to impairment of debtors other than tuition fees
Overpayment made by the college in 2016 and the refund was received in 2016
Restated balance

8 993 968
11 569 739
(796)
(7 354 605)
2 735 347
595
15 944 248

31.2.2 Property, plant and equipment
Previously stated 01 Jan 2017
Adjustment to Cost Opening Balance due to newly verified assets
Adjustment to Accumulated Depreciation Opening Balance due to newly verified
assets
Correction of Accumulated Depreciation
Correction of Work-in-progress for Consulting Expenses incorrectly Capitalised
Restated Balance as at 01 Jan 2017
Transactions for the year previously disclosed
Rounding differences
Correction to 2017 additions
Correction to 2017 Impairments due to reclassification of assets
Correction to 2017 depreciation based on newly verified assets
Restated balance

261 450 147
1 263 662
(134 635)
102
(361 841)
262 217 436
963 892
(2)
(16 745)
(706)
(187 687)
262 976 188

The reconciliation of the movement of Property, plant and equipment was also restated
to correctly disclose the Capital Work-in-Progress under the correct asset class. The effect
hereof can be summarised as follows:

Land
Buildings
Capital Work in Progress
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Bulk Electricity Supply
Paving
Audiovisual
Kitchen equipment
Total

Land
Buildings
Capital Work in Progress
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Audiovisual
Kitchen equipment
Total

After
2018
2017
Restatements of Comparative
Restated
Newly Verified
Assets
Carrying Value Carrying Value Carrying Value
Opening
Opening
Opening
Balance
Balance
Balance
22 725 197
22 725 197
202 279 163
210 318 333
8 039 170
8 039 170
(8 039 170)
2 448 457
2 448 457
5 894 927
5 894 927
9 172 529
9 172 529
1 617 941
1 617 941
5 786 405
5 786 405
1 432 364
1 432 364
599 722
599 722
842 405
842 405
1 379 155
1 379 155
262 217 435
262 217 435
Additions

1 320 743
9 457 189
163 000
705 100
394 523
379 046
2 335 932
4 163
22 996
14 782 692

Additions

8 937 877
163 000
728 019
576 523
379 046
3 077 402
4 163
916 663
14 782 692

Additions

7 617 133
(9 457 189)
22 919
182 000
741 470
893 667
-
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2018
R

Note

Land
Buildings
Capital Work in Progress
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Bulk Electricity Supply
Paving
Audiovisual
Kitchen equipment
Total

2017
R

After
Carrying Value Carrying Value
Restatements of Closing Balance Closing Balance
Newly Verified
Assets
22 725 197
22 725 197
198 997 491
214 653 794
15 656 303
17 496 359
(17 496 359)
1 810 973
1 810 973
4 963 749
4 986 668
22 919
6 168 387
6 350 387
182 000
1 535 701
1 535 701
5 897 856
6 639 326
741 470
1 371 417
1 371 417
578 945
578 945
600 551
600 551
829 562
1 723 229
893 667
262 976 188
262 976 188
-

31.2.3 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Previously stated
Prior year transport claims only received late in 2018
Correction on Water and Electricity bill received
Correction to 2017 Fleet Card only identified in the current year
Correction to allocation of NSFAS due to late receipt of remittance
Correct allocation of project funding previously not allocated
Restated balance

25 869 962
41 081
(1 956)
(67 587)
(7 354 605)
(405 000)
18 081 895

31.2.4 Accumulated surplus
Previously stated
Adjustments to opening balance of Accumulated Surplus
Reversal of write off of 2016 debtors
Adjustments to opening balance of Property, Plant and Equipment
Overpayment made by the college in 2016 and the refund was received in 2016
Surplus for the year
As previously reported
Correction of errors
Restated balance

297 655 119
12 337 620
11 569 736
767 289
595
1 878 612
(1 084 264)
2 962 876
311 871 351

31.3 Notes to the financial statements
31.3.1 Contingent
Liabilities
During the year under review, it was discovered that the amount disclosed for the certain
of the Contingent Liabilities excluded the legal fees expected to be due. The legal fees
were included in the narrative supporting each claim. To this extent the following
commitments have been restated:
Jacques Klaase
Grassmere Farms

Previously
Reported

200 000
15 000

2018
Comparative

390 000
74 727

2017
Restated

190 000
59 727

31.3.2 Risk Management disclosures
Previously
Reported

2018
Comparative

2017
Restated

Financial Assets - at cost
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers
Cash and cash equivalents

8 993 968
24 532 790
23 961 705

-

(8 993 968)
(24 532 790)
(23 961 705)

Financial Liabilities - at cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

25 869 962

-

(25 869 962)

Since the designation as financial instruments at cost is only available to derivitive
instruments, all financial instruments had to be reclassified as follows:
Financial Assets - at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers

-

15 802 354
24 532 790

15 802 354
24 532 790

Financial Assets - at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents

-

23 961 705

23 961 705
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Note
Financial Liabilities - at amortised cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Cumulative effect
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

-

8 993 968
24 532 790
23 961 705
25 869 962

2018
R

2017
R

17 643 141

17 643 141

15 802 354
24 532 790
23 961 705
17 643 141

6 808 386
(8 226 821)

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Previously stated
Prior period errors (refer detail above)
Prepayments (not considered a financial instruments (right to receive goods instead of
Cash)
Rounding difference
Restated balance

1
15 802 354

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Previously stated
Prior period errors (refer detail above)
Restated balance

25 869 962
(7 720 480)
18 149 482

Some of the items included in the interest bearing instruments does not attract interest
and therefore the amounts had to be restated:

- Cash and cash equivalents
- Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
- Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

8 993 968
6 950 280
(141 895)

Previously
Reported
23 961 705
-

2018
Comparative
23 961 705
51 681 171
3 151 612

2017
Restated

51 681 171
3 151 612

- Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Per designation above
Plus provision for bad debts
Less non-interest bearing instruments
- Restated balance

15 802 354
46 087 660
(10 208 843)
51 681 171

- Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Per designation above
Less non-interest bearing instruments
- Restated balance

18 149 482
(14 491 529)
3 657 953

Taking the above changes to the interest bearing instruments into account, the amount
disclosed under interest sensitivity was recalculated as:
Interest rate increase by 2%
Interest rate decrease by 2%

1 743 393
1 675 025

1 034 069
(1 034 069)

(709 324)
(2 709 094)

2 759 846
946 002
3 705 848

1 853 775
1 899 844
3 753 619

132 386

44 606

3 270 887
3 270 887

2 838 685
2 838 685

32 Operating lease commitments
At the reporting date the College has outstanding commitments under operating leases
which fall due as follows:
Operating lease arrangements
Lessee
The major category of assets leased is rental of buildings.
At the reporting date the College had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
2 to 5 years
More than 5 years

Operating lease liability
Operating Leases consists of the following:
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 2 years and rentals are fixed for an average
of 1 years. No contingent rent is payable.
Terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses are specified in the lease
agreements.
Restrictions imposed by lease arrangements are that no alterations are to be made to the
lease property without the prior consent of the lessor.
Lease and sublease payments recognised in the statement of financial performance
Minimum lease payments
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Note

2018
R

2017
R

8 169 996
8 169 996
3 821 909
255 738
1 777 984
815 866
1 498 500
8 169 996

7 269 194
7 269 194
1 389 540
3 821 909
1 225 851
831 894
7 269 194

2 029 739
4 641 757
1 498 500
8 169 996

2 029 739
5 239 455
7 269 194

33 Commitments
COMMITMENTS IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
- Approved and contracted for
PPE
Hospitality Building-DHET FUNDING
VRB 6 Classrooms-DHET FUNDING
Supply and delivery of new vehicles
Remedial work to the collapsed slab at Atlantis Campus
Pigeon Club Building
Desktop Computers
Replacement of Servers
Photocopy Machines
Total capital commitments
The capital commitments will be financed from
- Government Grants
- Own resources
- Own resources-Finance Lease

Page 68 of 74

WEST COAST COLLEGE 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

115

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
Note
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R

2017
R

34 Contingent liabilities
Compensation for damages/Breach of Contract
Linda Brink

-

350 000

-

390 000

The review application was heard in the Labour Court on 12 October 2017. The review
outcome was in favour of the Respondent (Linda Brink). The College sought a legal
opinion from Snr Advocate Ms. Tanya Golden. The legal opinion suggested that the
College's prospects of success should the College refer the ruling to the Labour Appeal
court was weak. The College prior to the end of December 2017 was in negotiations with
the Respondents attorneys to settle the matter. The amount to be considered was R200
000 including the Court Costs and the Respondents attorneys cost. These costs excludes
the cost of the College's appointed legal council, the estimated accumalative costs could
be in the region of R350 000.
All financial implications were resolved during the current year.
The matter has been concluded
Jacques Klaase
The Applicant (College) has filed all relevant opposing papers and has served these review
documents on the respondent. To date the respondent has not honoured the agreed
deadlines and the Applicant would be opposing the condonation application. Financial
exposure including the risk of Labour Court proceedings and the payment of the original
award might amount to R200 000.00. This review application was setdown on the Labour
Court Roll for 28 November 2017. The review was not heard due to unavailibilty of the
Applicants legal representative and was subsequently removed from the roll. This matter
is awaiting a resheduled date to be heard. These estimated costs excludes the cost of the
College's appointed legal council which could amount to and additional R190 000.
All financial implications were resolved during the current year.
Glowing Sunset Trading 38 CC

7 524 648

10 000

The Defendant (West Coast College) appointed legal council has served the Notice of
intention to Defend on the opposing attorneys. This matter might go to trial. Fees and
disbursements might amount to R 180 000.00. In the prior year, it seemed unlikely that
the matter would be persued.
We have received a summons and the matter is opposed by the college.
Grassmere Farms

-

74 727

40 000

20 000

325 632

405 632

The Respondent (West Coast College) confirms that this matter is settled and that the
keys were handed to the Applicant (Grassmere Farms). The estimated legal costs could
amount to R15 000. The amount claimed by the Plaintiff is R59 727.12.
All financial implications were resolved during the current year.
This matter never went to court.
Legal Opinion Sort
The Applicant (West Coast College) approached its appointed legal council for an opinion
regarding allegations of alleged misconduct against the Respondent (Ms. Sonja Botha), a
Senior Ethics Officer. The allegations investigated relates to possible undermining of
Authority and possible instigation. The estimited legal costs could amount R40 000 (2017:
R20 000).
Matter was resolved internally
Neil Rodrigues
The applicant's (Neil Rodrigues) legal council is yet to provide the Respondent's (West
Coast College) legal council with their Index. The matter is not being pursued. The
estimated legal cost could amount to R100 000 (2017: R180 000).
This matter is not conclude but the probability is small for litigation
Lulu Nongogo

215 415

-

154 304

-

9 000

-

Nature of claim: Breach of Contract. The applicant terminated her mandate with her
attorney. Further action is uncertain. This matter might go to trial. Fees and
disbursements might amount to R 110 000.00.
MMR Finansiele Dienste
Nature of claim: Breach of Contract. This matter might be settled between the parties.
Fees and disbursements might amount to R 80 000.
Provision of Legal Services
Nature of claim: Fee Agreement. This matter will be settled shortly. Fees and
disbursements might amount to R 9 000.00.
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R
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R

35 In-kind donations and assistance
The DHET SAICA HR and CFO Projects provide support to the College through the provision of a part time HR Business Partner and a full time
ADPF, as well as central project management support, including technical, policy development, governance and business management systems
support. The project management support also includes a provincial management and performance management support, to assist the College
in managing the HRBP's and the ADPF's performance. The Project is funded by the National Skills Fund and the services are provided by SAICA
as part of its Nation Building initiative on a recovery of cost basis, which is well below fair value.
The HR Support project is scheduled to conclude on 31 December 2018 and the CFO Support Project is scheduled to conclude on 30 June 2019.
After the conclusion of the Projects, the College will have to bear the cost of obtaining additional HR support that may be required and it will
also have to bear the cost appointing a Deputy Principal Finance and to create the resources to replace the central support provided by the
project management.

36 Related parties
Members of key management
Close family member of key management
DHET
Other TVET Colleges
SETAs
Minister of Higher Education and Training
National Student Financial Aid Scheme
Related party transactions
Councillor
remuneration
Prof A Redlinghuis [Chairperson]
Ms Z Zantsi [Deputy Chairperson]
Ms E du Plessis
Ms J Stoffels
Dr K Jacobs
Mr H Kok
Mr C Maans
Prof F Sonn

117 269
129 089
93 875
25 720
95 579
61 682
47 609
33 725
604 548

110 556
82 774
94 357
23 936
74 067
51 691
36 919
474 300

7 206
937
7 257
140 724
263 400
419 523

735 357
70 479
222 416
50 622

Executive Members
JOOSTE-MOKGETHI OT (Principal and Council Member)
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Performance and other bonuses
Leave Payment
DAPULA ND (Deputy Principal Academic)
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Performance and other bonuses

618 916
80 547
63 412
52 317
815 191

1 078 874

-

320 694
41 749
35 622
49 355
447 420
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VAN DYK R (Deputy Principal Innovation & Development)
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Performance and other bonuses
MBULAWA L (Deputy Principal Corporate Services)
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Performance and other bonuses
ABRAHAMS WU (Former Chief Financial Officer)
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances

2018
R

2017
R

681 901
96 775
61 825
67 950
908 451

641 053
91 457
57 640
54 710
844 860

620 740
80 784
158 550
62 203
922 277

556 778
72 461
63 350
49 984
742 573

-

Total Executive Remuneration

3 065 442

5 272
5 272
3 118 999

37 Events after the reporting date
Adjusting events
No such events were identified

38 Key sources of estimation uncertainty and judgements
The following areas involve a significant degree of estimation uncertainty:
Useful lives and residual values of property, plant, and equipment
Recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of debts
Impairment of assets
The following areas involved judgements, apart from those involving estimations
disclosed above, that management has made in the process of applying the College's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements:
Impairment of assets
Provisions
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R
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R

39 Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 December 2018, the College had accumulated profits of R336 911 259 and that the Coll ege's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R336 911 259.
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds
will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the College to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the College is
dependent on programme funding received from DHET at a level which, when combined with other revenue generated by the College, is
sufficient to fund the operations of the College.
40 Net Assets
In terms of the CET Act, the Minister of Higher Education and Training may close a public college subject to certain conditions. In such a case, the
net assets of the College, comprising the accumulated surplus and reserves, will vest in the Minister of Higher Education and Training after the
settlement of all liabilities.
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R
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R

41 Risk management and other financial instrument disclosures
The accounting policy for financial instruments has been applied to the
following items reported in the Statement of Financial Position:

Financial Assets - at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and
transfers

26 733 924 15 802 354
11 059 919 24 532 790

Financial Assets - at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents

95 129 926 23 961 705

Financial Liabilities - at amortised cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

22 552 107 17 643 141

Maximum credit risk exposure
Credit risk exposure arise mainly from cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The College only deposits cash with major banks with
high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base, comprising mainly of students of the College. Management evaluates credit risk relating
to customers on an ongoing basis. Risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are determined using prior experience and, where applicable, limits set by the Council.
The financial assets expose the College to credit risk. The value of the
maximum exposure to credit risk are as follows for each of classes of
financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including transfers

95 129 926
26 733 924
11 059 919

23 961 705
15 802 354
24 532 790

Concentration
of
credit
risk
Credit risk consists mainly of trade debtors and cash deposits with major
banks.
Further disclosure for the items subject to credit risk is made under Notes
3, 4 and 5.
Liquidity risk
The College’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover
future commitments. The College manages liquidity risk through an
ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing
facilities are monitored.
The table below analyses the College’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
2018

Trade and other payables
2017

Trade and other payables

Not later than
one year

22 552 107
Not later than
one year

17 643 141

Later than one
year

Later than one
year

-

Later than three Later than one
months and not year and not
later than one later than five
year
years
Later than three Later than one
months and not year and not
later than one later than five
year
years
-
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2018
R

2017
R

Concentration
of
liquidity
risk
Liquidity risk consists mainly of
trade
creditors.
Further disclosure for the items subject to credit risk is made under Notes
9 as indicated above.
Interest rate risk
As the college has limited interest-bearing assets from time to time, the
college’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.
At year end, financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk were as
follows:
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
- Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

95 128 931
31 866 935
3 006 604

23 961 705
51 681 171
3 151 612

Concentration
of
interest
rate
risk
Interest rate risk is attributable to funds held with major banks and is
therefore not considered to be concentrated nor volatile.
Further disclosure for the items subject to credit risk is made under Notes
4 as indicated above.
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The susceptibility of financial performance to changes in interest rates
can be illustrated using a "what if" analysis and the assumption that only
one variable changes at a time:
Interest rate increase by 2%
Interest rate decrease by 2%

Impact of change
1 964 805
(1 964 805)

1 034 069
(1 034 069)

The following methods and
assumptions were applied in the
determination of the interest rate sensitivity analysis:
The "what if" analysis and assumptions was applied and the assumption
is that one variable, namely the interest percentage rate, changes at a
time.
Credit, liquidity and market risks are the same as in prior years and the
management thereof is unchanged in the current year.
42 Tax exemption
The College is exempt from normal taxation in terms of section Section 10(1)/(c)A of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No.58 of 1962).
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